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EXECUTIVEEXECUTIVE SUMMARYSUMMARY 

WeWe attemptattempt toto replicatereplicate thethe dutiesduties ofof financialfinancial analystsanalysts byby performingperforming 
accountingaccounting andand financialfinancial analysesanalyses forfor Enron,Enron, usingusing informationinformation containedcontained 
inin thethe firm'sfirm's SecuritySecurity andand ExchangeExchange CommissionCommission filingsfilings andand inin annualannual 
andand quarterlyquarterly reportsreports thatthat werewere availableavailable toto analystsanalysts priorprior toto thethe firm'sfirm's 
collapse.collapse. WeWe focusfocus onon EnronEnron accountingaccounting policies,policies, estimates,estimates, andand financialfinancial 
measuresmeasures thatthat reflectreflect thethe keykey riskrisk areasareas thatthat wewe identifiedidentified inin ourour strategystrategy 
analysis.analysis. 

GivenGiven thatthat thethe purposepurpose ofof accountingaccounting analysisanalysis isis toto evaluateevaluate thethe degreedegree 
finn'stoto whichwhich aa firm's accountingaccounting systemsystem capturescaptures itsits underlyingunderlying economiceconomic 

reality,reality, wewe attemptattempt toto assessassess thethe degreedegree ofof distortiondistortion inin Enron'sEnron's reportedreported 
numbers,numbers, basedbased onon ourour comfortcomfort levellevel withwith management'smanagement's choicechoice ofof ac­ac­
countingcounting policiespolicies andand estimates.estimates. TheThe purposepurpose ofof ourour financialfinancial analysisanalysis isis 

finntoto assessassess thethe performanceperformance ofof thethe firm afterafter itsits effortsefforts toto negatenegate thethe effectseffects 
ofof perceivedperceived distortionsdistortions inin thethe reportedreported numbers.numbers. WeWe ask,ask, andand attemptattempt toto 
answer,answer, thethe questionquestion ofof whetherwhether financialfinancial analystsanalysts shouldshould havehave seenseen warn­warn­
inging signssigns ofof Enron'sEnron's collapsecollapse andand shouldshould havehave warnedwarned investorsinvestors ofof thethe 
firm'sfirm's precariousprecarious financialfinancial situationsituation longlong beforebefore thethe unfortunateunfortunate eventevent sur­sur­
prisedprised stockholdersstockholders andand creditorscreditors alike.alike. 

OurOur detaileddetailed analysesanalyses showshow thatthat fromfrom 19971997 onwardonward therethere waswas evidenceevidence 
ofof reportingreporting andand performanceperformance problems.problems. WeWe highlighthighlight areasareas ofof majormajor con­con­
cerncern aboutabout profitabilityprofitability andand debtdebt levels.levels. 

infonnationAlthoughAlthough EnronEnron managementmanagement makesmakes anan abundanceabundance ofof information avail­avail­
ableable toto analysts,analysts, thethe languagelanguage isis notnot alwaysalways clear;clear; itit isis confusingconfusing eveneven toto 
accountingaccounting experts.experts. TheThe vastvast amountamount ofof informationinformation makesmakes thethe analyst'sanalyst's 

sepa­jobjob timetime consumingconsuming andand tedious,tedious, yetyet essentialessential information,information, suchsuch asas sepa­
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also had complex ownership arrangements with many other companies and 
partnerships. These investments and ownership arrangements may have put a 
strain on the firm's capital budgeting and capital management systems. 

We now use the conclusions reached in our strategy analysis to investigate 
Enron's accounting and financial information, in order to evaluate its financial 
performance and determine whether the firm's accounting and financial policies 
made sense. We believe that most financial analysts should have seen red flags 
and warned investors of the company's shaky financial situation. In this regard, 
we highlight actionable danger signals apparent in the financial statements and 
mandated Securities and Exchange Commission filings, signals that analysts 
should have recognized, identified, and warned stakeholders about. 

ACCOUNTING ANALYSIS 

Overview of Accounting Analysis 

The purpose of accounting analysis is to evaluate the degree to which a 
firm's accounting system captures its underlying economic reality, given in­
herent management biases and the substantial accounting flexibility that man­
agement is empowered with (Palepu et al. 2000, 3-1). For this purpose we use 
Enron's precollapse publicly available and externally audited income state­
ments, balance sheets, statements of cash flows, notes to the financial statements, 
management discussion and analysis (MD&A) reports, and independent audi­
tor reports. We supplement this with other information that was readily avail­
able to analysts. 

For each financial statement account category-assets, liabilities, sharehold­
ers' equity, revenues, and expenses-we use our knowledge ofthe firm's profit 
drivers and risk factors to identify key areas of accounting flexibility, bearing 
in mind that there are strong relations between the various categories (for ex­
ample, revenue recognition policies directly impact assets). We evaluate the 
appropriateness of the accounting policies and estimates chosen by manage­
ment, and we attempt to assess the degree of distortion in reported numbers. 
Where possible, we attempt to negate the effect of perceived distortions in 
reported numbers by using cash flow numbers, disclosures made in the notes 
to the financial statements, and qualified opinions given by the external audi­
tors. This provides us a springboard from which to launch into financial analysis, 
using our own adjusted numbers (if deemed necessary) to improve the reli­
ability of our financial analysis calculations (see Palepu et al. 2000, 3-1). 

Another important part of accounting analysis is to demarcate the bound­
aries of the business by looking beyond the legal definitions that normally 
COntrol financial reporting. As analysts, we should be far more concerned with 
eConomic substance than with legal form. We want to know what resources 
the firm controls, a much broader focus than the narrowly defined legal form 
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rateratedisclosuresdisclosures ofunrealizedunrealizedgainsgainsof onontradingtradingactivities,activities,isisnotnotavailable.available. 
ThisThisdoesdoesnot,not,however,however,excuseexcuseanalystsanalystswhowhooverwhelminglyoverwhelminglywouldwouldnotnot 
seeseethethewoodswoodsforforthethetrees,trees,andandwhowhocontinuedcontinuedrecommendingrecommendingtotoclientsclients 

orthatthattheytheybuybuy orholdholdEnronEnronstock.stock. 
OurOurinvestigationinvestigationshowsshowsthatthatthetheredredflagsflagswerewereplentifulplentifulandandthatthatthethe 

of insituationsituationwaswasaggravatedaggravatedbybythetheincidentsincidents ofapparentapparentdisdaindisdain(reported(reported in 
thethenewsnewsmedia)media)withwithwhichwhichEnron'sEnron'stoptopmanagementmanagementdealtdealtwithwithfinancialfinancial 
analysts.analysts.TheTheresultsresultsofofourouraccountingaccountingandandfinancialfinancialanalysesanalysesraiseraiseissuesissues 
aboutaboutthethecompetence,competence,independence,independence,andandobjectivityobjectivityofofanalystsanalystswhowhocon­con­
tinuedtinuedtotorecommendrecommendthisthisstock.stock. 

INTRODUCTIONINTRODUCTION 

TheThe strategystrategy analysisanalysis inin thethe previousprevious chapterchapterallowsallowsusus toto focusfocus ononEnron'sEnron's 
relatedrelatedkeykeyriskriskareasareasforfor accountingaccounting analysisanalysispurposes.purposes.TheThefirstfirstwaswas thethefi­fi­
nancialnancialsuccesssuccessofofitsitsdealerdealerandandtradingtradingactivities.activities.ThisThisriskriskfactorfactorstemsstemsfromfrom 
Enron'sEnron's movemove awayaway fromfrom itsits successfulsuccessfullow-risklow-riskcorecoreenergyenergybusinessesbusinesses intointo 
high-riskhigh-risk dealerdealer andand tradingtrading activities,activities, includingincluding broadbandbroadband andand derivativesderivatives 
(the(the specificsspecifics ofofwhichwhich cannotcannotclearlyclearly bebe identifiedidentifiedfromfrom strategystrategy disclosuresdisclosures 
inin publicpublic filings).filings). TheThe movemove putput thethe firmfirm atat increasedincreased riskrisk intointo newnew andand ill­ill­
defineddefinedbusinessbusinessoperations.operations.AccordingAccording toto aagroupgroup ofofanalystsanalystswhowho questionedquestioned 
Enron'sEnron's precollapseprecollapse performance,performance, 

TheThe sustainabilitysustainability ofof Enron'sEnron's businessbusiness modelmodel isis basedbased onon itsits abilityability toto createcreate andand ex­ex­
ploitploit markets,markets, whetherwhethertheythey bebe inin energy,energy, bandwidth,bandwidth, freighterfreighter capacity,capacity, datadata storagestorage oror 
toilettoilet paper.paper. ItsIts profitprofit potentialpotential declinesdeclines asas aa functionfunction ofof thethe raterate atat whichwhich thethe marketsmarkets 
maturemature........ marketsmarkets maturemature veryvery quicklyquickly thesethese daysdays thanksthanks toto thethe increasedincreased sophistica­sophistica­
tiontion andand varietyvariety ofof riskrisk managementmanagement productsproducts andand servicesservices andand speedspeed ofof informationinformation 
flowsflows thatthat enhanceenhance tradingtrading liquidity.liquidity. (Wasden,(Wasden, Ayers,Ayers, andand AriasArias 200200 I,1, 6-7)6-7) 

TheseThese analystsanalysts (whose(whose opinionopinion differeddiffered markedlymarkedly fromfrom mostmost ofof theirtheir peers)peers) 
succinctlysuccinctly concludedconcluded thatthat Enron'sEnron's earningsearnings couldcould suffersuffer fromfrom thethe veryvery marketmarket 
efficiencyefficiency thatthat thethe firmfirm hadhad helpedhelped toto unleash.unleash. 

TheThe secondsecond riskrisk areaarea concernedconcerned thethe maintenancemaintenance ofof investorinvestor confidenceconfidence andand 
accessaccess toto financingfinancing resources.resources. ThisThis riskrisk areaarea becamebecame especiallyespecially importantimportant fromfrom 
19991999 onward.onward. Management'sManagement's self-declaredself-declared intenseintense focusfocus onon earningsearnings perper shareshare 
ledled toto qualityquality ofof earningsearnings andand incomeincome managementmanagement concerns.concerns. InIn addition,addition, man­man­
agement'sagement's emphasisemphasis onon thethe continuedcontinued accessaccess toto financingfinancing resourcesresources providedprovided 
strongstrong motivationmotivation toto managemanage ratiosratios stipulatedstipulated inin debtdebt covenants.covenants. 

AA thirdthird riskrisk areaarea isis thethe financialfinancial successsuccess ofof internationalinternational high-risk,high-risk, hard­hard­
assetasset venturesventures andand complexcomplex partnershippartnership andand equityequity ownershipownership structures.structures. In­In­
vestmentsvestments inin thesethese venturesventures andand entitiesentities contradictedcontradicted management'smanagement's apparentapparent 
newnew asset-lightasset-light philosophy.philosophy. ExamplesExamples includedincluded investmentsinvestments inin thethe litigation­litigation­
rackedracked DabholDabhol powerpower plantplant projectproject inin IndiaIndia andand waterwater plantsplants inin England.England. EnroEnronn 
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rate disclosures of unrealized gains on trading activities, is not available. 
This does not, however, excuse analysts who overwhelmingly would not 
see the woods for the trees, and who continued recommending to clients 
that they buy or hold Enron stock. 

Our investigation shows that the red flags were plentiful and that the 
situation was aggravated by the incidents of apparent disdain (reported in 
the news media) with which Enron's top management dealt with financial 
analysts. The results of our accounting and financial analyses raise issues 
about the competence, independence, and objectivity of analysts who con­
tinued to recommend this stock. 

INTRODUCTION 

The strategy analysis in the previous chapter allows us to focus on Enron's 
related key risk areas for accounting analysis purposes. The first was the fi­
nancial success ofits dealer and trading activities. This risk factor stems from 
Enron's move away from its successful low-risk core energy businesses into 
high-risk dealer and trading activities, including broadband and derivatives 
(the specifics of which cannot clearly be identified from strategy disclosures 
in public filings). The move put the firm at increased risk into new and ill­
defined business operations. According to a group of analysts who questioned 
Enron's precollapse performance, 

The sustainability of Enron's business model is based on its ability to create and ex­
ploit markets, whether they be in energy, bandwidth, freighter capacity, data storage or 
toilet paper. Its profit potential declines as a function of the rate at which the markets 
mature.... markets mature very quickly these days thanks to the increased sophistica­
tion and variety of risk management products and services and speed of information 
flows that enhance trading liquidity. (Wasden, Ayers, and Arias 200 1, 6-7) 

These analysts (whose opinion differed markedly from most of their peers) 
succinctly concluded that Enron's earnings could suffer from the very market 
efficiency that the firm had helped to unleash. 

The second risk area concerned the maintenance ofinvestor confidence and 
access to financing resources. This risk area became especially important from 
1999 onward. Management's self-declared intense focus on earnings per share 
led to quality of earnings and income management concerns. In addition, man­
agement's emphasis on the continued access to financing resources provided 
strong motivation to manage ratios stipulated in debt covenants. 

A third risk area is the financial success of international high-risk, hard­
asset ventures and complex partnership and equity ownership structures. In­
vestments in these ventures and entities contradicted management's apparent 
new asset-light philosophy. Examples included investments in the litigation­
racked Dabhol power plant project in India and water plants in England. Enron 
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alsoalso hadhad complexcomplex ownershipownership arrangementsarrangements withwith manymany otherother companiescompanies andand 
partnerships.partnerships. TheseThese investmentsinvestments andand ownershipownership arrangementsarrangements maymay havehave putput aa 
strainstrain onon thethe firm'sfirm's capitalcapital budgetingbudgeting andand capitalcapital managementmanagement systems.systems. 

WeWe nownow useuse thethe conclusionsconclusions reachedreached inin ourour strategystrategy analysisanalysis toto investigateinvestigate 
Enron'sEnron's accountingaccounting andand financialfinancial information,information, inin orderorder toto evaluateevaluate itsits financialfinancial 
performanceperformance andand determinedetermine whetherwhether thethe firm'sfirm's accountingaccounting andand financialfinancial policiespolicies 
mademade sense.sense. WeWe believebelieve thatthat mostmost financialfinancial analystsanalysts shouldshould havehave seenseen redred flagsflags 
andand warnedwarned investorsinvestors ofof thethe company'scompany's shakyshaky financialfinancial situation.situation. InIn thisthis regard,regard, 
wewe highlighthighlight actionableactionable dangerdanger signalssignals apparentapparent inin thethe financialfinancial statementsstatements andand 
mandatedmandated SecuritiesSecurities andand ExchangeExchange CommissionCommission filings,filings, signalssignals thatthat analystsanalysts 
shouldshould havehave recognized,recognized, identified,identified, andand warnedwarned stakeholdersstakeholders about.about. 

ACCOUNTINGACCOUNTING ANALYSISANALYSIS 

OverviewOverview ofof AccountingAccounting AnalysisAnalysis 

TheThe purposepurpose ofof accountingaccounting analysisanalysis isis toto evaluateevaluate thethe degreedegree toto whichwhich aa 
firm'sfirm's accountingaccounting systemsystem capturescaptures itsits underlyingunderlying economiceconomic reality,reality, givengiven in­in­
herentherent managementmanagement biasesbiases andand thethe substantialsubstantial accountingaccounting flexibilityflexibility thatthat man­man­
agementagement isis empoweredempowered withwith (Palepu(Palepu etet al.al. 2000,2000, 3-1).3-1). ForFor thisthis purposepurpose wewe useuse 
Enron'sEnron's precollapseprecollapse publiclypublicly availableavailable andand externallyexternally auditedaudited incomeincome state­state­
ments,ments, balancebalance sheets,sheets, statementsstatements ofof cashcash flows,flows, notesnotes toto thethe financialfinancial statements,statements, 
managementmanagement discussiondiscussion andand analysisanalysis (MD&A)(MD&A) reports,reports, andand independentindependent audi­audi­
tortor reports.reports. WeWe supplementsupplement thisthis withwith otherother informationinformation thatthat waswas readilyreadily avail­avail­
ableable toto analysts.analysts. 

ForFor eacheach financialfinancial statementstatement accountaccount category-assets,category-assets, liabilities,liabilities, sharehold­sharehold­
ers'ers' equity,equity, revenues,revenues, andand expenses-weexpenses-we useuse ourour knowledgeknowledge of the firm'sfirm's profitprofit 
driversdrivers andand riskrisk factorsfactors toto identifyidentify keykey areasareas ofof accountingaccounting flexibility,flexibility, bearingbearing 
inin mindmind thatthat therethere areare strongstrong relationsrelations betweenbetween thethe variousvarious categoriescategories (for(for ex­ex­
ample,ample, revenuerevenue recognitionrecognition policiespolicies directlydirectly impactimpact assets).assets). WeWe evaluateevaluate thethe 
appropriatenessappropriateness ofof thethe accountingaccounting policiespolicies andand estimatesestimates chosenchosen byby manage­manage­
ment,ment, andand wewe attemptattempt toto assessassess thethe degreedegree ofof distortiondistortion inin reportedreported numbers.numbers. 
WhereWhere possible,possible, wewe attemptattempt toto negatenegate thethe effecteffect ofof perceivedperceived distortionsdistortions inin 
reportedreported numbersnumbers byby usingusing cashcash flowflow numbers,numbers, disclosuresdisclosures mademade inin thethe notesnotes 
toto thethe financialfinancial statements,statements, andand qualifiedqualified opinionsopinions givengiven byby thethe externalexternal audi­audi­
tors.tors. ThisThis providesprovides usus aa springboardspringboard fromfrom whichwhich toto launchlaunch intointo financialfinancial analysis,analysis, 
usingusing ourour ownown adjustedadjusted numbersnumbers (if(if deemeddeemed necessary)necessary) toto improveimprove thethe reli­reli­
abilityability ofof ourour financialfinancial analysisanalysis calculationscalculations (see(see PalepuPalepu etet al.al. 2000,2000, 3-1).3-1). 

AnotherAnother importantimportant partpart ofof accountingaccounting analysisanalysis isis toto demarcatedemarcate thethe bound­bound­
ariesaries ofof thethe businessbusiness byby lookinglooking beyondbeyond thethe legallegal definitionsdefinitions thatthat normallynormally 

ofthe 

COntrolControl financialfinancial reporting.reporting. AsAs analysts,analysts, wewe shouldshould bebe farfar moremore concernedconcerned withwith 
eConomiceConomic substancesubstance thanthan withwith legallegal form.form. WeWe wantwant toto knowknow whatwhat resourcesresources 
thethe firmfirm controls,controls, aa muchmuch broaderbroader focusfocus thanthan thethe narrowlynarrowly defineddefined legallegal formform 



Financial Analysts and Enron 79 

Asset Analysis 

Enron's audit reports from Arthur Andersen are clean. In both the 1999 and 
2000 reports, however, Arthur Andersen specifically informs shareholders and 
the Board of Directors of the following (using identical wording for both years): 
"As discussed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, Enron Corp. 
and subsidiaries changed ... its method of accounting for certain contracts in 
energy trading and risk management activities in the first quarter of 1999" 
(1999 annual report, 40; 2000 annual report, 30). We will deal with the effects 
of this very significant accounting change-accounting for contracts (deriva­
tives) in energy trading-under asset analysis. 

Significant challenges face the financial analyst with regard to reported as­
sets. Management often has considerable discretion over whether expendi­
tures are capitalized or expensed. Decisions in this area can significantly affect 
profits and earnings per share, a ratio that stock market participants (including 
the financial news media) and Enron management (by its own admission) were 
particularly fixated on. We have already identified this self-declared fixation 
as a key risk area for Enron. 

Instead of launching into an unstructured examination of Enron's financial 
statements, we will (to use the same term that Enron used with regard to earn­
ings per share) "laser-focus" on the risk areas that we identified during strat­
egy analysis and apply the six accounting analysis steps to each risk area. 

The Financial Success ofDealer and Trading Activities 

A major area of concern is the firm's move away from its successful core 
businesses into higher-risk dealer and trading activities, although this was not 
immediately evident to us from strategy disclosures in the firm's public filings 
but took some "digging" to discern. Accounting analysis may provide addi­
tional insight and either alleviate or strengthen our concerns. A related re­
ported asset is called "assets from price risk management activities," and it 
was immediately apparent that a decided increase occurred in 2000, in both 
absolute and relative terms. The amount of this asset, with the percentage of 
total assets in parentheses, for each of the past five years was 1996, $2,473 
million (15%); 1997, $2,384 million (11 %); 1998, $3,845 million (13%); 1999, 
$5,134 million (15%); and 2000, $21,006 million (32%). This dramatic in­
crease coincided with the introduction of Enron Online, which Web-enabled 
Enron's trading activities. A scrutiny of the quarterly Form lO-Q filings for 
2000 reveals that at the end of the first quarter the amount was $6,567 million 
(18%), in the second quarter $10,924 million (24%), and in the third quarter 
$14,661 million (28%), a continual increase throughout the year. 

Management explains Enron's accounting policy for this asset in footnote 1, 
"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies," of the 2000 annual report as 
follows (emphasis added by authors): 
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ofof anan entity.entity. Generally,Generally, wewe wouldwould searchsearch forfor hiddenhidden commitmentscommitments oror losseslosses 
fromfrom investmentsinvestments inin otherother entities,entities, thethe transfertransfer ofof resourcesresources toto otherother entitiesentities 
thatthat thethe firmfirm cancan somehowsomehow controlcontrol (e.g.,(e.g., relatedrelated entitiesentities ownedowned oror managedmanaged 
personallypersonally byby EnronEnron management),management), andand possiblepossible investmentinvestment inin managementmanagement 
petpet projectsprojects thatthat havehave highhigh riskrisk andand aa lowlow returnreturn (see(see PalepuPalepu etet al.al. 2000,2000, 8-1).8-1). 
Therefore,Therefore, wewe alsoalso performperform entityentity accountingaccounting analysis.analysis. 

WhenWhen performingperforming thethe accountingaccounting analysis,analysis, wewe taketake thethe followingfollowing sixsix steps,steps, 
consistentconsistent withwith thethe PalepuPalepu etet al.al. frameworkframework (2000,(2000, 3-73-7 toto 3-13):3-13): 

StepStep 1:1: CheckCheck thethe auditaudit report.report. IsIs itit "clean"?"clean"? IdentifyIdentify andand evaluateevaluate thethe keykey accountingaccounting 
policiespolicies thatthat EnronEnron usesuses toto measuremeasure criticalcritical successsuccess factorsfactors andand riskrisk areas.areas. 

StepStep 2:2: AssessAssess thethe flexibilityflexibility thatthat managementmanagement hashas inin choosingchoosing accountingaccounting policiespolicies andand 
estimates,estimates, andand trytry toto discerndiscern management'smanagement's mostmost likelylikely motivationmotivation (e.g.,(e.g., toto improveimprove 
earningsearnings perper shareshare andand debtdebt covenantcovenant ratios).ratios). 

StepStep 3:3: EvaluateEvaluate accountingaccounting strategy.strategy. ForFor example,example, waswas thethe strategystrategy usedused toto communi­communi­
catecate businessbusiness realityreality oror toto hidehide performance?performance? DoesDoes managementmanagement havehave strongstrong moti­moti­
vationvation toto managemanage earnings?earnings? RegardingRegarding earningsearnings management,management, doesdoes thethe firmfirm havehave 
debtdebt covenants?covenants? HasHas managementmanagement changedchanged estimatesestimates andand policies?policies? IsIs therethere anyany evi­evi­
dencedence toto suggestsuggest thatthat EnronEnron structuresstructures businessbusiness transactionstransactions specificallyspecifically toto achieveachieve 
certaincertain accountingaccounting numbers?numbers? 

StepStep 4:4: EvaluateEvaluate thethe depthdepth andand qualityquality ofof thethe disclosures.disclosures. ForFor example,example, dodo thethe notesnotes toto 
thethe financialfinancial statementsstatements adequatelyadequately explainexplain keykey accountingaccounting policiespolicies andand assump­assump­
tions?tions? DoesDoes managementmanagement adequatelyadequately explainexplain financialfinancial performance?performance? WhatWhat isis thethe 
qualityquality ofof segmentsegment disclosures?disclosures? DoesDoes managementmanagement aggregateaggregate manymany differentdifferent busi­busi­
nessesnesses inin aa singlesingle segment?segment? DoesDoes managementmanagement disclosedisclose badbad newsnews inin additionaddition toto goodgood 
news?news? DoesDoes managementmanagement adequatelyadequately addressaddress performanceperformance problems?problems? HowHow goodgood isis 
Enron'sEnron's investorinvestor relationsrelations program?program? HowHow doesdoes managementmanagement dealdeal withwith analysts?analysts? 

StepStep 5:5: IdentifyIdentify redred flagsflags thatthat indicateindicate potentialpotential accounting-qualityaccounting-quality problemsproblems andand useuse 
thesethese asas startingstarting pointspoints forfor furtherfurther investigation.investigation. ForFor example,example, areare therethere unexplainedunexplained 
changeschanges inin accounting?accounting? AreAre therethere unexplainedunexplained oror complexcomplex transactions?transactions? IsIs therethere anan 
increasingincreasing gapgap betweenbetween netnet incomeincome fromfrom operationsoperations andand cashcash flowflow fromfrom operations?operations? 
IsIs therethere anan increasingincreasing gapgap betweenbetween netnet incomeincome andand taxabletaxable income?income? IsIs therethere evi­evi­
dencedence ofof unusualunusual financing?financing? AreAre therethere largelarge andand unexpectedunexpected assetasset write-offs?write-offs? AreAre 
therethere related-partyrelated-party transactionstransactions oror transactionstransactions betweenbetween relatedrelated entitiesentities thatthat maymay 

Enron'slacklack objectivityobjectivity inin thethe marketplace---especiallymarketplace---especially inin viewview ofof Enron's positionposition ofofpowerpower 
duedue toto verticalvertical integration,integration, whichwhich allowedallowed itit toto controlcontrol moremore thanthan oneone stagestage ofof thethe 
industry'Sindustry'S transactions,transactions, includingincluding thatthat ofof marketmarket maker?maker? IsIs therethere evidenceevidence thatthat EnronEnron 
exertsexerts controlcontrol overover otherother entitiesentities thatthat areare notnot legallylegally partpart ofof thethe group?group? 

StepStep 6:6: UnravelUnravel possiblepossible accountingaccounting distortionsdistortions byby restatingrestating reportedreported numbers.numbers. ThisThis isis 
notnot alwaysalways possible,possible, becausebecause ofof lacklack ofof information.information. TheThe notesnotes toto thethe financialfinancial state­state­
mentsments andand thethe cashcash flowflow statementstatement maymay supplysupply informationinformation usefuluseful forfor thisthis purpose.purpose. 
ByBy makingmaking thesethese restatementsrestatements asas analysts,analysts, wewe dodo notnot accuseaccuse thethe firmfirm ofof misstate­misstate­
ment,ment, butbut wewe restaterestate componentscomponents ofofthethe financialfinancial statementsstatements basedbased onon ourour externalexternal 
perceptionsperceptions ofofthethe underlyingunderlying businessbusiness realityreality ofofthethe firm.firm. InIn thethe eventevent ofof anan errorerror inin 
judgment,judgment, wewe wouldwould preferprefer toto errerr onon thethe sideside ofof caution.caution. 
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of an entity. Generally, we would search for hidden commitments or losses
from investments in other entities, the transfer of resources to other entities
that the firm can somehow control (e.g., related entities owned or managed
personally by Enron management), and possible investment in management
pet projects that have high risk and a low return (see Palepu et al. 2000, 8-1). 
Therefore, we also perform entity accounting analysis. 

When performing the accounting analysis, we take the following six steps, 
consistent with the Palepu et al. framework (2000, 3-7 to 3-13): 

Step 1: Check the audit report. Is it "clean"? Identify and evaluate the key accounting 
policies that Enron uses to measure critical success factors and risk areas. 

Step 2: Assess the flexibility that management has in choosing accounting policies and 
estimates, and try to discern management's most likely motivation (e.g., to improve 
earnings per share and debt covenant ratios). 

Step 3: Evaluate accounting strategy. For example, was the strategy used to communi­
cate business reality or to hide performance? Does management have strong moti­
vation to manage earnings? Regarding earnings management, does the firm have 
debt covenants? Has management changed estimates and policies? Is there any evi­
dence to suggest that Enron structures business transactions specifically to achieve 
certain accounting numbers? 

Step 4: Evaluate the depth and quality of the disclosures. For example, do the notes to 
the financial statements adequately explain key accounting policies and assump­
tions? Does management adequately explain financial performance? What is the 
quality of segment disclosures? Does management aggregate many different busi­
nesses in a single segment? Does management disclose bad news in addition to good 
news? Does management adequately address performance problems? How good is 
Enron's investor relations program? How does management deal with analysts? 

Step 5: Identify red flags that indicate potential accounting-quality problems and use 
these as starting points for further investigation. For example, are there unexplained 
changes in accounting? Are there unexplained or complex transactions? Is there an 
increasing gap between net income from operations and cash flow from operations? 
Is there an increasing gap between net income and taxable income? Is there evi­
dence of unusual financing? Are there large and unexpected asset write-offs? Are 
there related-party transactions or transactions between related entities that may 
lack objectivity in the marketplace---especially in view of Enron's position ofpower 
due to vertical integration, which allowed it to control more than one stage of the 
industry'S transactions, including that of market maker? Is there evidence that Enron 
exerts control over other entities that are not legally part of the group? 

Step 6: Unravel possible accounting distortions by restating reported numbers. This is 
not always possible, because of lack of information. The notes to the financial state­
ments and the cash flow statement may supply information useful for this purpose. 
By making these restatements as analysts, we do not accuse the firm of misstate­
ment, but we restate components of the financial statements based on our external 
perceptions ofthe underlying business reality ofthe firm. In the event of an error in 
judgment, we would prefer to err on the side of caution. 
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AssetAsset AnalysisAnalysis 

Enron'sEnron's auditaudit reportsreports fromfrom ArthurArthur AndersenAndersen areare clean.clean. InIn bothboth thethe 19991999 andand 
20002000 reports,reports, however,however, ArthurArthur AndersenAndersen specificallyspecifically informsinforms shareholdersshareholders andand 
thethe BoardBoard ofof DirectorsDirectors ofof thethe followingfollowing (using(using identicalidentical wordingwording forfor bothboth years):years): 
"As"As discusseddiscussed inin NoteNote 1818 toto thethe consolidatedconsolidated financialfinancial statements,statements, EnronEnron Corp.Corp. 
andand subsidiariessubsidiaries changedchanged ...... itsits methodmethod ofof accountingaccounting forfor certaincertain contractscontracts inin 
energyenergy tradingtrading andand riskrisk managementmanagement activitiesactivities inin thethe firstfirst quarterquarter ofof 1999"1999" 
(1999(1999 annualannual report,report, 40;40; 20002000 annualannual report,report, 30).30). WeWe willwill dealdeal withwith thethe effectseffects 
ofof thisthis veryvery significantsignificant accountingaccounting change-accountingchange-accounting forfor contractscontracts (deriva­(deriva­
tives)tives) inin energyenergy trading-undertrading-under assetasset analysis.analysis. 

SignificantSignificant challengeschallenges faceface thethe financialfinancial analystanalyst withwith regardregard toto reportedreported as­as­
sets.sets. ManagementManagement oftenoften hashas considerableconsiderable discretiondiscretion overover whetherwhether expendi­expendi­
turestures areare capitalizedcapitalized oror expensed.expensed. DecisionsDecisions inin thisthis areaarea cancan significantlysignificantly affectaffect 
profitsprofits andand earningsearnings perper share,share, aa ratioratio thatthat stockstock marketmarket participantsparticipants (including(including 
thethe financialfinancial newsnews media)media) andand EnronEnron managementmanagement (by(by itsits ownown admission)admission) werewere 
particularlyparticularly fixatedfixated on.on. WeWe havehave alreadyalready identifiedidentified thisthis self-declaredself-declared fixationfixation 
asas aa keykey riskrisk areaarea forfor Enron.Enron. 

InsteadInstead ofof launchinglaunching intointo anan unstructuredunstructured examinationexamination ofof Enron'sEnron's financialfinancial 
statements,statements, wewe willwill (to(to useuse thethe samesame termterm thatthat EnronEnron usedused withwith regardregard toto earn­earn­
ingsings perper share)share) "laser-focus""laser-focus" onon thethe riskrisk areasareas thatthat wewe identifiedidentified duringduring strat­strat­
egyegy analysisanalysis andand applyapply thethe sixsix accountingaccounting analysisanalysis stepssteps toto eacheach riskrisk area.area. 

TheThe FinancialFinancial SuccessSuccess ofofDealerDealer andand TradingTrading ActivitiesActivities 

AA majormajor areaarea ofof concernconcern isis thethe firm'sfirm's movemove awayaway fromfrom itsits successfulsuccessful corecore 
businessesbusinesses intointo higher-riskhigher-risk dealerdealer andand tradingtrading activities,activities, althoughalthough thisthis waswas notnot 
immediatelyimmediately evidentevident toto usus fromfrom strategystrategy disclosuresdisclosures inin thethe firm'sfirm's publicpublic filingsfilings 
butbut tooktook somesome "digging""digging" toto discern.discern. AccountingAccounting analysisanalysis maymay provideprovide addi­addi­
tionaltional insightinsight andand eithereither alleviatealleviate oror strengthenstrengthen ourour concerns.concerns. AA relatedrelated re­re­
portedported assetasset isis calledcalled "assets"assets fromfrom priceprice riskrisk managementmanagement activities,"activities," andand itit 
waswas immediatelyimmediately apparentapparent thatthat aa decideddecided increaseincrease occurredoccurred inin 2000,2000, inin bothboth 
absoluteabsolute andand relativerelative terms.terms. TheThe amountamount ofof thisthis asset,asset, withwith thethe percentagepercentage ofof 
totaltotal assetsassets inin parentheses,parentheses, forfor eacheach ofof thethe pastpast fivefive yearsyears waswas 1996,1996, $2,473$2,473 
millionmillion (15%);(15%); 1997,1997, $2,384$2,384millionmillion (11(11%);%); 1998,1998, $3,845$3,845 millionmillion (13%);(13%); 1999,1999, 
$5,134$5,134 millionmillion (15%);(15%); andand 2000,2000, $21,006$21,006 millionmillion (32%).(32%). ThisThis dramaticdramatic in­in­
creasecrease coincidedcoincided withwith thethe introductionintroduction ofof EnronEnron Online,Online, whichwhich Web-enabledWeb-enabled 
Enron'sEnron's tradingtrading activities.activities. AA scrutinyscrutiny ofof thethe quarterlyquarterly FormForm lO-QlO-Q filingsfilings forfor 
20002000revealsreveals thatthat atat thetheendend ofofthethefirstfirst quarterquarter thetheamountamountwaswas $6,567$6,567 millionmillion 
(18%),(18%), inin thethe secondsecond quarterquarter $10,924$10,924 millionmillion (24%),(24%), andand inin thethe thirdthird quarterquarter 
$14,661$14,661 millionmillion (28%),(28%), aacontinualcontinual increaseincrease throughoutthroughout thethe year.year. 

ManagementManagementexplainsexplains Enron'sEnron's accountingaccountingpolicypolicy forfor thisthis assetasset inin footnotefootnote 1,1, 
"Summary"Summary ofofSignificantSignificantAccountingAccounting Policies,"Policies," ofofthethe 20002000 annualannual reportreport asas 
followsfollows (emphasis(emphasis addedaddedbybyauthors):authors): 
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Table 5.1 
Enron's Net Assets from Price-Risk-ManagementActivities (In Millions of US. 
Dollars) 

2000 1999 1998 1997 
Current Assets 12,018 2,205 1,904 1,346
Current Liabilities 10,495 1,836 2,511 ],245
Net Current Assets ],523 369 (607) \01 

Non-Current Assets 8,988 2,929 1,9411 1,038
Non-Current Liabilities 9,423 2,990 ],421 876 
Net Non-Current Assets (435) (61 ) 1625201 

1,088 308 (87) I 263 

780 395 (350) 
763 395 (350) (20]) 

(17) ° 0 ° 
*Entire amount classified as resulting from "operating" activities as opposed to the long-term 

portion being classified as resulting from investing activities. 

The effects of Enron's highly aggregated disclosure are first, that unreal­
ized gains or losses in net income cannot be ascertained; and second, cash 
flow effects ofnontrading risk-management activities have been excluded from 
"Cash Flows from Investing Activities" and diverted to the operating activities 
section of the cash flow statement. Enron does have nontrading activities in 
this regard, as evidenced by its disclosure that "Enron engages in price risk 
management activities for both trading and non-trading purposes." If we ac­
cept that the noncurrent net assets should be excluded from the operating sec­
tion, the impact on operating cash flow would be positive, at $708 million 
instead of $350 million, for 1998; negative, at $976 million instead of $395 
million for 1999; and negative at $1,154 million instead of $763 million, for 
2000. Cash flows relating to investing activities would be affected by the same 
amounts but in the opposite direction. 

The reported effects of the change in net assets from risk-management ac­
tivities on operating cash flow from 1996 to 2000 are as follows (percentage 
impact on net income before tax is shown in parentheses): 1996, $15 million 
negative (minus 3%); 1997, $201 million negative (minus 191%); 1998, $350 
million negative (minus 50%); 1999, $395 million positive (44%); and 2000, 
$763 million positive (78%). Scrutiny of the quarterly Form lO-Q filings for 
2000 reveals that at the end of the third quarter the negative impact on cash 
flow amounted to $952 million, exceeding the net income amount of $919 
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AccountingAccounting forfor PricePrice RiskRisk Management.Management. EnronEnron engagesengages inin priceprice riskrisk managementmanagement 
activitiesforactivitiesfor bothboth tradingtrading andand non-tradingnon-trading purposes.purposes. InstrumentsInstruments utilizedutilized inin connec­connec­
tiontion withwith tradingtrading activitiesactivities areare accountedaccounted forfor usingusing thethe mark-to-marketmark-to-market method.method. UnderUnder 
thethe mark-to-marketmark-to-market methodmethod ofof accounting,accounting, forwards,forwards, swaps,swaps, options,options, energyenergy transpor­transpor­
tationtation contractscontracts utilizedutilized forfor tradingtrading activitiesactivities andand otherother instrumentsinstruments withwith thirdthird partiesparties 
areare reflectedreflected atat fairfair valuevalue andand areare shownshown asas "Assets"Assets andand LiabilitiesLiabilities fromfrom PricePrice RiskRisk 
ManagementManagement Activities"Activities" inin thethe ConsolidatedConsolidated BalanceBalance Sheet.Sheet. TheseThese activitiesactivities alsoalso in­in­
cludeclude thethe commoditycommodity riskrisk managementmanagement componentcomponent embeddedembedded inin energyenergy outsourcingoutsourcing 
contracts.contracts. UnrealizedUnrealized gainsgains andand losseslosses fromfrom newlynewly originatedoriginated contracts,contracts, contractcontract 

"Other Revenues."restructuringsrestructurings andand thethe impactimpact ofof priceprice movementsmovements areare recognizedrecognized asas "Other Revenues." 
...... TheThe marketmarket pricesprices usedused toto valuevalue thesethese transactionstransactions reflectreflect management'smanagement's bestbest esti­esti­
matemate consideringconsidering variousvarious factorsfactors includingincluding closingclosing exchangeexchange andand over-the-counterover-the-counter quo­quo­
tations,tations, timetime valuevalue andand volatilityvolatility factorsfactors underlyingunderlying thethe commitments.commitments. (p.(p. 36)36) 

TheThe questionquestion thatthat comescomes toto mindmind is:is: WhatWhat percentagepercentage ofof netnet incomeincome isis at­at­
tributabletributable toto thesethese unrealizedunrealized gainsgains thatthat areare includedincluded inin earnedearned revenue?revenue? AsAs thethe 
footnotefootnote mentions,mentions, revenuesrevenues fromfrom priceprice riskrisk managementmanagement activitiesactivities areare notnot 
shownshown separatelyseparately onon thethe incomeincome statementstatement butbut areare unobtrusivelyunobtrusively lumpedlumped inin 
withwith "Other"Other Revenue."Revenue." Nevertheless,Nevertheless, wewe attemptattempt toto quantifyquantify thethe revenuerevenue im­im­
pactpact ofof thesethese financialfinancial instrumentinstrument tradingtrading activitiesactivities byby appealingappealing toto thethe state­state­
mentment ofof cashcash flowsflows andand thethe reconciliationreconciliation betweenbetween accrual-basedaccrual-based netnet incomeincome 
(which(which isis increasedincreased byby thesethese activities)activities) andand cashcash generatedgenerated byby operatingoperating ac­ac­
tivitiestivities (which(which excludesexcludes revenuerevenue fromfrom thesethese activitiesactivities becausebecause thethe revenuerevenue isis 
unrealizedunrealized andand hashas notnot beenbeen collected).collected). AfterAfter takingtaking intointo considerationconsideration Enron'sEnron's 
disclosuredisclosure ofof significantsignificant accountingaccounting policies-"Enronpolicies-"Enron engagesengages inin priceprice riskrisk 
managementmanagement activitiesactivities forfor bothboth tradingtrading andand non-tradingnon-trading purposes,"-wepurposes,"-we de­de­
cidedcided onon aa wishwish listlist ofof whatwhat wewe wouldwould likelike toto seesee inin thethe statementstatement ofof cashcash 
flows.flows. 

First,First, underunder "Cash"Cash FlowsFlows fromfrom OperatingOperating Activities,"Activities," wewe wouldwould likelike toto seesee 
thethe followingfollowing lineline itemsitems forfor netnet priceprice riskrisk managementmanagement assets:assets: unrealizedunrealized gainsgains 
(losses)(losses) onon tradingtrading priceprice riskrisk managementmanagement assetsassets andand unrealizedunrealized gainsgains onon non­non­
tradingtrading price-risk-managementprice-risk-management assets.assets. 

Second,Second, underunder "Cash"Cash FlowsFlows fromfrom InvestingInvesting Activities,"Activities," wewe wouldwould likelike toto 
seesee thethe aggregateaggregate amountamount ofof expendituresexpenditures onon thethe portionportion ofof netnet price-risk­price-risk­
managementmanagement assetsassets reportedreported asas noncurrentnoncurrent (and(and hencehence nontradingnontrading netnet assets,assets, 
inin ourour viewview asas outsidersoutsiders withoutwithout proprietaryproprietary informationinformation oror managementmanagement dis­dis­
closureclosure toto thethe contrary),contrary), asas wellwell asas proceedsproceeds fromfrom thethe salesale ofof suchsuch noncurrentnoncurrent 
netnet assets.assets. 

WeWe areare disappointeddisappointed onon bothboth counts.counts. AnAn analysisanalysis andand attemptattempt atat recalcula­recalcula­
tiontion ofof thethe singlesingle lineline itemitem ofofdisclosuredisclosure onon "net"net assetsassets fromfrom priceprice riskrisk manage­manage­
mentment activities"activities" underunder "Cash"Cash FlowsFlows fromfrom OperatingOperating Activities"Activities" revealsreveals thatthat 
currentcurrent andand noncurrentnoncurrent netnet assetsassets havehave beenbeen lumpedlumped together;together; onlyonly thethe netnet 
assetasset increaseincrease hashas beenbeen discloseddisclosed (note(note thatthat therethere isis aa $17$17 millionmillion unexplainedunexplained 
discrepancydiscrepancy inin 2000).2000). DetailsDetails ofof ourour calculationscalculations appearappear inin tabletable 5.1.5.1. 
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Accounting for Price Risk Management. Enron engages in price risk management
activitiesfor both trading and non-trading purposes. Instruments utilized in connec­
tion with trading activities are accounted for using the mark-to-market method. Under
the mark-to-market method of accounting, forwards, swaps, options, energy transpor­
tation contracts utilized for trading activities and other instruments with third parties
are reflected at fair value and are shown as "Assets and Liabilities from Price Risk
Management Activities" in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. These activities also in­
clude the commodity risk management component embedded in energy outsourcing
contracts. Unrealized gains and losses from newly originated contracts, contract
restructurings and the impact of price movements are recognized as "Other Revenues."
... The market prices used to value these transactions reflect management's best esti­
mate considering various factors including closing exchange and over-the-counter quo­
tations, time value and volatility factors underlying the commitments. (p. 36) 

The question that comes to mind is: What percentage of net income is at­
tributable to these unrealized gains that are included in earned revenue? As the
footnote mentions, revenues from price risk management activities are not
shown separately on the income statement but are unobtrusively lumped in
with "Other Revenue." Nevertheless, we attempt to quantify the revenue im­
pact of these financial instrument trading activities by appealing to the state­
ment of cash flows and the reconciliation between accrual-based net income
(which is increased by these activities) and cash generated by operating ac­
tivities (which excludes revenue from these activities because the revenue is
unrealized and has not been collected). After taking into consideration Enron's
disclosure of significant accounting policies-"Enron engages in price risk
management activities for both trading and non-trading purposes,"-we de­
cided on a wish list of what we would like to see in the statement of cash
flows. 

First, under "Cash Flows from Operating Activities," we would like to see
the following line items for net price risk management assets: unrealized gains
(losses) on trading price risk management assets and unrealized gains on non­
trading price-risk-management assets. 

Second, under "Cash Flows from Investing Activities," we would like to 
see the aggregate amount of expenditures on the portion of net price-risk­
management assets reported as noncurrent (and hence nontrading net assets, 
in our view as outsiders without proprietary information or management dis­
closure to the contrary), as well as proceeds from the sale of such noncurrent
net assets. 

We are disappointed on both counts. An analysis and attempt at recalcula­
tion of the single line item ofdisclosure on "net assets from price risk manage­
ment activities" under "Cash Flows from Operating Activities" reveals that 
current and noncurrent net assets have been lumped together; only the net 
asset increase has been disclosed (note that there is a $17 million unexplained 
discrepancy in 2000). Details of our calculations appear in table 5.1. 
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5.1TableTable 5.1 
of US.Enron'sEnron's NetNet AssetsAssets fromfrom Price-Risk-ManagementActivitiesPrice-Risk-ManagementActivities (In(In MillionsMillions ofD.S. 

Dollars)Dollars) 

20002000 19991999 19981998 19971997 
CurrentCurrent AssetsAssets 12,01812,018 2,2052,205 1,9041,904 1,3461,346 
CurrentCurrent LiabilitiesLiabilities 10,49510,495 1,8361,836 2,5112,511 ],245],245 
NetNet CurrentCurrent AssetsAssets ],523],523 369369 (607)(607) \01101 

Non-CurrentNon-Current AssetsAssets 8,9888,988 2,9292,929 1,94111,941 1,0381,038 
Non-CurrentNon-Current LiabilitiesLiabilities 9,4239,423 2,9902,990 ],4211,421 876876 
NetNet Non-CurrentNon-Current AssetsAssets (435)(435) )(61(61 ) 5201520 162]62 

Calculated Net Assets (Combined) 1,0881,088 308308 (87)(87) I 263263 

Calculated Net Change (Combined) 780780 395395 (350)(350) -
Net Change (Combined) per Cash 763763 395395 (350)(350) (20])(201) 
Flow Statement* 
Unexplained Difference (17)(17) °0 00 °0 

*Entire*Entire amountamount classifiedclassified asas resultingresulting fromfrom "operating""operating" activitiesactivities asas opposedopposed toto thethe long-termlong-term 
portionportion beingbeing classifiedclassified asas resultingresulting fromfrom investinginvesting activities.activities. 

TheThe effectseffects ofof Enron'sEnron's highlyhighly aggregatedaggregated disclosuredisclosure areare first,first, thatthat unreal­unreal­
izedized gainsgains oror losseslosses inin netnet incomeincome cannotcannot bebe ascertained;ascertained; andand second,second, cashcash 
flowflow effectseffects ofof nontradingnontrading risk-managementrisk-management activitiesactivities havehave beenbeen excludedexcluded fromfrom 
"Cash"Cash FlowsFlows fromfrom InvestingInvesting Activities"Activities" andand diverteddiverted toto thethe operatingoperating activitiesactivities 
sectionsection ofof thethe cashcash flowflow statement.statement. EnronEnron doesdoes havehave nontradingnontrading activitiesactivities inin 
thisthis regard,regard, asas evidencedevidenced byby itsits disclosuredisclosure thatthat "Enron"Enron engagesengages inin priceprice riskrisk 
managementmanagement activitiesactivities forfor bothboth tradingtrading andand non-tradingnon-trading purposes."purposes." IfIf wewe ac­ac­
ceptcept thatthat thethe noncurrentnoncurrent netnet assetsassets shouldshould bebe excludedexcluded fromfrom thethe operatingoperating sec­sec­
tion,tion, thethe impactimpact onon operatingoperating cashcash flowflow wouldwould bebe positive,positive, atat $708$708 millionmillion 
insteadinstead ofof $350$350 million,million, forfor 1998;1998; negative,negative, atat $976$976 millionmillion insteadinstead ofof $395$395 
millionmillion forfor 1999;1999; andand negativenegative atat $1,154$1,154 millionmillion insteadinstead ofof $763$763 million,million, forfor 
2000.2000.CashCashflowsflowsrelatingrelatingtotoinvestinginvestingactivitiesactivitieswouldwouldbebeaffectedaffectedbybythethesamesame 
amountsamounts butbutinin thethe oppositeoppositedirection.direction. 

TheThereportedreportedeffectseffects ofofthethechangechangeininnetnetassetsassets fromfrom risk-managementrisk-managementac­ac­
tivitiestivities ononoperatingoperatingcashcashflowflow fromfrom 19961996toto20002000areareasas followsfollows (percentage(percentage 
impactimpactononnetnetincomeincomebeforebeforetaxtaxisisshownshownininparentheses):parentheses): 1996,1996,$15$15millionmillion 
negativenegative(minus(minus3%);3%); 1997,1997,$201$201millionmillionnegativenegative(minus(minus 191191%);%);1998,1998,$350$350 
millionmillionnegativenegative(minus(minus50%);50%); 1999,1999,$395$395millionmillionpositivepositive(44%);(44%);andand2000,2000, 
$763$763millionmillionpositivepositive(78%).(78%).ScrutinyScrutinyofofthethequarterlyquarterlyFormForm lO-QlO-Qfilingsfilingsforfor 
20002000revealsrevealsthatthatatatthetheendendofofthethethirdthirdquarterquarterthethenegativenegativeimpactimpactononcashcash 
flowflowamountedamountedtoto$952$952million,million,exceedingexceedingthethenetnetincomeincomeamountamountofof$919$919 
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unprecedented and surprising move, a post-Enron SEC has taken this notion a 
step farther. In a warning by the chief accountant for the SEC's enforcement 
division (Liesman 2002), management and the auditors have been informed in 
no uncertain terms that it is possible to violate SEC laws while being in compli­
ance with generally accepted accounting principles. Therefore, mere compliance 
with the rules without considering whether the results "fairly present" finan­
cial performance could lead to legal proceedings for securities fraud. It is in 
this light that we discuss briefly the FASB standards for derivatives, by which 
Enronjustified its mark-to-market valuation approach. 

Derivatives are initiated via legal contracts, without any immediate signifi­
cant expenditure. These contracts represent legal rights and obligations, from 
which assets and liabilities arise. Enron to some degree highlighted this prob­
lem when during the first half of the 1990s it took the lead and incorporated 
mark-to-market accounting for energy-related derivative contracts and there­
after used it on an unprecedented scale. Under mark-to-market rules, assets 
and liabilities resulting from the legal rights and obligations of the contracts 
are recorded at fair market value. The determination of a fair value at which to 
record these rights and obligations as assets and liabilities is a major problem 
in accounting for markets that are largely unregulated and not well established, 
with no quoted prices. Enron began trading in a variety of these markets as a 
first-mover (for example, trading in energy-related derivatives, bandwidth, data 
storage, paper, and weather derivatives) and essentially caught accounting stan­
dard setters offguard. Firms like Enron were free to develop and use discretionary 
valuation models to value their assets and liabilities, allowing considerable 
management discretion. The resultant unrealized gains or losses were used to 
determine net income. Existing financial instruments standards had not been 
prepared with unregulated markets (such as those that Enron created) in mind. 
The latitude that Enron had, by which it acted as buyer, seller, and market 
maker, exacerbated this situation, regardless of whether or not it followed FASB 
standards. Consequently, we do not feel at all comfortable with the quality of 
these earnings. 

From a financial analysis perspective, because of Enron's multiple roles 
(buyer, seller, market maker) and resultant quality of earnings concerns, we 
argue for the reversal of unrealized gains until such time as realization war­
rants recognition as revenue. In the event of a net unrealized loss, we support 
a transfer to the income statement, invoking the conservatism concept in ac­
counting as justification for the disparate treatment. As we cannot determine 
the amount of the unrealized gains because of insufficient disclosure in the 
cash flow statements, we will use the cash flow numbers as reported by Enron 
(although we strongly suspect that these are also flawed, because noncurrent 
price risk net assets are treated as current and operating). However, we will 
adjust net income to the best of our ability to negate the effect of increases 
resulting from these activities. The cash flow does provide an alternative bench­
mark for reporting (Palepu et al. 2000, 3-13). This is the route we will take for 
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million.million. This switch from anegativenegativecash-flowcash-flowimpactimpactsituationsituation(1996(1996 to1998)1998)This switch from a to 
to apositivepositivesituationsituation(1999(1999 and2000)2000) may berelatedrelated to theadoptionadoption at theto a and may be to the at the 

beginningbeginning of 1999 of theEmergingEmerging Issues Task Force Issue No.98-10,98-10, "Ac­of 1999 of the Issues Task Force Issue No. "Ac­
countingcounting forContractsContracts Involved inEnergyEnergyTradingTrading and RiskManagementManagement Ac­for Involved in and Risk Ac­
tivities,"tivities," which requiresrequires energy tradingtrading contracts (including(including energywhich energy contracts energy 
transportationtransportationcontracts)contracts) to berecordedrecorded at fair value on the balance sheet(mark(markto be at fair value on the balance sheet 
to market).market). This standardstandard gave the rubberstampstamp tomanagementmanagement to use itsto This gave the rubber to to use its 
considerable discretion asbuyer,buyer,seller,seller, and market maker in detennining theconsiderable discretion as and market maker in determining the 
value of itsprice-risk-managementprice-risk-management assets andliabilities.liabilities. Thecumulativecumulative fi­value of its assets and The fi­

nancialnancial effect of this accountingaccounting changechange on net incomeincome was notseparatelyseparatelyeffect of this on net was not 
quantifiedquantified but wasaggregatedaggregated in the amount of $131million,million,togethertogether with anbut was in the amount of $131 with an 
amountrelatingrelating toanotheranotheraccountingaccountingchangechangemademade at thebeginningbeginning of1999.1999.amount to at the of 
TakenTaken at face value,value, theeffecteffect of the changechange does not appear to bematerial.material.at face the of the does not appear to be 
TheTheAccountingAccountingPronouncementsPronouncementsfootnotefootnotestates,states,"The"Thefirstfirstquarterquarter19991999chargecharge 
was primarilyprimarily relatedrelated to the adoptionadoption of SOPSOP 98-5,"98-5," whichwhich requiresrequires the ex­was to the of the ex­
pensingpensing ofallall startupstartup andandorganizationorganization costs. However,However, once thethe new Emerg­Emerg­of costs. once new 
inging IssuesIssues standardstandard on energyenergy tradingtrading contracts was issued,issued, thethe managementmanagementon contracts was 
ofEnronEnron was effectivelyeffectively givengiven carte blancheblanche on relatedrelated net-asset valuations.valuations.of was carte on net-asset 

As discusseddiscussed in thethe strategystrategy analysis,analysis, EnronEnron changedchanged its SICSIC codecode duringduringAs in its 
thethe lastlast quarterquarter of 2000,2000, probablyprobably becausebecause of itsits focusfocus on energyenergy tradingtrading ac­of of on ac­
tivities.tivities. ThisThis knowledge,knowledge, coupledcoupled withwith our concerns aboutabout unrealizedunrealized gainsgains onour concerns on 
risk-managementrisk-management nets assets,assets, leadsleads us directlydirectly intointo thethe secondsecond riskrisk factor­factor­nets us 
management'smanagement's self-declaredself-declared sharpsharp focusfocus on earningsearnings perper share.share. OurOur concernson concerns 
are heightenedheightened becausebecause management,management, byby itsits own admissionadmission inin thethe quotedquoted ac­are own ac­
countingcounting policypolicy statement,statement, largelylargely determinesdetermines thethe marketmarket valuevalue ofof thesethese finan­finan­

cialcial instruments,instruments, includingincluding energyenergy transportationtransportation contracts,contracts, inin an unregulatedunregulatedan 
market.market. Coincidently,Coincidently, inin latelate 20002000 CongressCongress passedpassed legislationlegislation thatthat exemptedexempted 

over-the-counterover-the-counter derivativesderivatives fromfrom regulationregulation afterafter some veryvery aggressiveaggressive lob­lob­some 
byingbying byby EnronEnron (see(see SchroederSchroeder andand IpIp 2001;2001; SchroederSchroeder 2002).2002). ThisThis marketmarket 
was new andand largelylargely initiatedinitiated byby Enron,Enron, oftenoften withoutwithout externallyexternally quotedquoted prices·prices·was new 
uponupon whichwhich to basebase asset valuations.valuations. Enron,Enron, in itsits capacitycapacity as thethe marketmarket maker,maker,to asset in as 
was freefree to effectivelyeffectively managemanage itsits earnings.earnings. A majormajor concern thatthat comes towas to A concern comes to 
mindmind is whetherwhether managementmanagement is usingusing thesethese unrealizedunrealized gainsgains to makemake up forforis is to up 
possiblepossible poorpoor performanceperformance in otherother high-riskhigh-risk ventures,ventures, suchsuch as thethe asset-intensiveasset-intensivein as 
Dabhol power plantplant in India,India, water systems,systems, and broadband.Dabhol power in water and broadband. 

EvenEven if a firmfirm chooseschooses to blindlyblindly followfollow an accountingaccounting standard,standard, withoutwithoutif a to an 
consideringconsidering the underlyingunderlying businessbusiness reality,reality, the resultantresultant financialfinancial informationinformationthe the 
can be misleading.misleading. The questionquestion is this: Does the selectionselection of the policypolicy orcan be The is this: Does the of the or 
estimateestimate result in the closestclosest portrayalportrayal of businessbusiness reality,reality, fairlyfairly presentingpresenting theresult in the of the 
underlyingunderlying economiceconomic conditions?conditions? If the analystanalyst believesbelieves that businessbusiness realityrealityIf the that 

is not reflected,reflected, she or he should attemptattempt to undo distortionsdistortions causedcaused by theis not she or he should to undo by the 
selectionselection of a particularparticular accountingaccounting policypolicy or estimate,estimate, regardlessregardless of its institu­institu­of a or of its 
tionalizedtionalized generalgeneral acceptance.acceptance. This notionnotion is not new (see(see PalepuPalepu et al. 2000),2000),This is not new et al. 

but it gainedgained prominenceprominence with the spatespate of recent accountingaccounting failures.failures. In anbut it with the of recent In an 
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million. This switch from a negative cash-flow impact situation (1996 to 1998)
to a positive situation (1999 and 2000) may be related to the adoption at the
beginning of 1999 of the Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 98-10, "Ac­
counting for Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Ac­
tivities," which requires energy trading contracts (including energy
transportation contracts) to be recorded at fair value on the balance sheet (mark
to market). This standard gave the rubber stamp to management to use its
considerable discretion as buyer, seller, and market maker in determining the
value of its price-risk-management assets and liabilities. The cumulative fi­
nancial effect of this accounting change on net income was not separately
quantified but was aggregated in the amount of $131 million, together with an
amount relating to another accounting change made at the beginning of 1999.
Taken at face value, the effect of the change does not appear to be material.
The Accounting Pronouncements footnote states, "The first quarter 1999 charge
was primarily related to the adoption of SOP 98-5," which requires the ex­
pensing of all startup and organization costs. However, once the new Emerg­
ing Issues standard on energy trading contracts was issued, the managemen
of Enron was effectively given carte blanche on related net-asset valuations. 

As discussed in the strategy analysis, Enron changed its SIC code 
the last quarter of 2000, probably because of its focus on energy trading ac
tivities. This knowledge, coupled with our concerns about unrealized gains o
risk-management nets assets, leads us directly into the second risk factor
management's self-declared sharp focus on earnings per share. Our concern

1,,1 are heightened because management, by its own admission in the quoted ac
counting policy statement, largely determines the market value of these finan
cial instruments, including energy transportation contracts, in an unregulate
market. Coincidently, in late 2000 Congress passed legislation that exempte
over-the-counter derivatives from regulation after some very aggressive lob
bying by Enron (see Schroeder and Ip 2001; Schroeder 2002). This marke
was new and largely initiated by Enron, often without externally quoted price
upon which to base asset valuations. Enron, in its capacity as the market maker
was free to effectively manage its earnings. A major concern that comes t
mind is whether management is using these unrealized gains to make up fo
possible poor performance in other high-risk ventures, such as the asset-intensiv
Dabhol power plant in India, water systems, and broadband. 

Even if a firm chooses to blindly follow an accounting standard, withou
considering the underlying business reality, the resultant financial informatio
can be misleading. The question is this: Does the selection of the policy o
estimate result in the closest portrayal of business reality, fairly presenting th
underlying economic conditions? If the analyst believes that business realit
is not reflected, she or he should attempt to undo distortions caused by th
selection of a particular accounting policy or estimate, regardless of its institu
tionalized general acceptance. This notion is not new (see Palepu et al. 2000
but it gained prominence with the spate of recent accounting failures. In a
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a aunprecedentedunprecedented andand surprisingsurprising move,move, a post-Enronpost-Enron SECSEC hashas takentaken thisthis notionnotion a 
a accountantstepstep farther.farther. InIn a warningwarning byby thethe chiefchief accountant forfor thethe SEC'sSEC's enforcementenforcement 

divisiondivision (Liesman(Liesman 2002),2002), managementmanagement andand thethe auditorsauditors havehave beenbeen informedinformed inin 
no terms it tono uncertainuncertain terms thatthat it isis possiblepossible to violateviolate SECSEC lawslaws whilewhile beingbeing inin compli­compli­
ance mereance withwith generallygenerally acceptedaccepted accountingaccounting principles.principles. Therefore,Therefore, mere compliancecompliance
withwith thethe rulesrules withoutwithout consideringconsidering whetherwhether thethe resultsresults "fairly"fairly present"present" finan­finan­

tocialcial performanceperformance couldcould leadlead to legallegal proceedingsproceedings forfor securitiessecurities fraud.fraud. ItIt isis inin 
wethisthis lightlight thatthat we discussdiscuss brieflybriefly thethe FASBFASB standardsstandards forfor derivatives,derivatives, byby whichwhich 

EnronjustifiedEnronjustified itsits mark-to-marketmark-to-market valuationvaluation approach.approach. 
areDerivativesDerivatives are initiatedinitiated viavia legallegal contracts,contracts, withoutwithout anyany immediateimmediate signifi­signifi­

cant contractscant expenditure.expenditure. TheseThese contracts representrepresent legallegal rightsrights andand obligations,obligations, fromfrom 
assets to somewhichwhich assets andand liabilitiesliabilities arise.arise. EnronEnron to some degreedegree highlightedhighlighted thisthis prob­prob­

lemlem whenwhen duringduring thethe firstfirst halfhalf ofof thethe 1990s1990s itit tooktook thethe leadlead andand incorporatedincorporated 
contractsmark-to-marketmark-to-market accountingaccounting forfor energy-relatedenergy-related derivativederivative contracts andand there­there­

it on an assetsafterafter usedused it on an unprecedentedunprecedented scale.scale. UnderUnder mark-to-marketmark-to-market rules,rules, assets 
contractsandand liabilitiesliabilities resultingresulting fromfrom thethe legallegal rightsrights andand obligationsobligations ofof thethe contracts 

are at a at toare recordedrecorded at fairfair marketmarket value.value. TheThe determinationdetermination ofof a fairfair valuevalue at whichwhich to 
as assets is arecordrecord thesethese rightsrights andand obligationsobligations as assets andand liabilitiesliabilities is a majormajor problemproblem 

are notinin accountingaccounting forfor marketsmarkets thatthat are largelylargely unregulatedunregulated andand not wellwell established,established, 
no a as awithwith no quotedquoted prices.prices. EnronEnron beganbegan tradingtrading inin a varietyvariety ofof thesethese marketsmarkets as a 

-moverfirstfirst-mover (for(for example,example, tradingtrading inin energy-relatedenergy-related derivatives,derivatives, bandwidth,bandwidth, datadata 
stan­storage,storage, paper,paper, andand weatherweather derivatives)derivatives) andand essentiallyessentially caughtcaught accountingaccounting stan­

setters were to usedarddard setters offoff guard.guard. FirmsFirms likelike EnronEnron were freefree to developdevelop andand use discretionarydiscretionary 
to assetsvaluationvaluation modelsmodels to valuevalue theirtheir assets andand liabilities,liabilities, allowingallowing considerableconsiderable 

or were tomanagementmanagement discretion.discretion. TheThe resultantresultant unrealizedunrealized gainsgains or losseslosses were usedused to 
net notdeterminedetermine net income.income. ExistingExisting financialfinancial instrumentsinstruments standardsstandards hadhad not beenbeen 

aspreparedprepared withwith unregulatedunregulated marketsmarkets (such(such as thosethose thatthat EnronEnron created)created) inin mind.mind. 
asTheThe latitudelatitude thatthat EnronEnron had,had, byby whichwhich itit actedacted as buyer,buyer, seller,seller, andand marketmarket 

or not itmaker,maker, exacerbatedexacerbated thisthis situation,situation, regardlessregardless ofof whetherwhether or not it followedfollowed FASBFASB 
we not atstandards.standards. Consequently,Consequently, we dodo not feelfeel at allall comfortablecomfortable withwith thethe qualityquality ofof 

thesethese earnings.earnings. 
aFromFrom a financialfinancial analysisanalysis perspective,perspective, becausebecause ofof Enron'sEnron's multiplemultiple rolesroles 

concerns, we(buyer,(buyer, seller,seller, marketmarket maker)maker) andand resultantresultant qualityquality ofof earningsearnings concerns, we 
as war­argueargue forfor thethe reversalreversal ofof unrealizedunrealized gainsgains untiluntil suchsuch timetime as realizationrealization war­

rants as revenue. event a net werants recognitionrecognition as revenue. InIn thethe event ofof a net unrealizedunrealized loss,loss, we supportsupport 
a to ac­a transfertransfer to thethe incomeincome statement,statement, invokinginvoking thethe conservatismconservatism conceptconcept inin ac­

as treatment. we cannotcountingcounting as justificationjustification forfor thethe disparatedisparate treatment. AsAs we cannot determinedetermine 
amountthethe amount ofof thethe unrealizedunrealized gainsgains becausebecause ofof insufficientinsufficient disclosuredisclosure inin thethe 

we use ascashcash flowflow statements,statements, we willwill use thethe cashcash flowflow numbersnumbers as reportedreported byby EnronEnron 
we are noncurrent(although(although we stronglystrongly suspectsuspect thatthat thesethese are alsoalso flawed,flawed, becausebecause noncurrent 

price net assets are as current wePrice riskrisk net assets are treatedtreated as current andand operating).operating). However,However, we willwill 
net to our toadjustadjust net incomeincome to thethe bestbest ofof our abilityability to negatenegate thethe effecteffect ofof increasesincreases 

anresultingresulting fromfrom thesethese activities.activities. TheThe cashcash flowflow doesdoes provideprovide an alternativealternative bench­bench­
mark et welllark forfor reportingreporting (Palepu(Palepu et al.al. 2000,2000, 3-13).3-13). ThisThis isis thethe routeroute we willwill taketake forfor 

during 
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We could find only a few voices of dissent in the analyst community prior 
to November 2001. For example, as far back as March 2001, the Reed Wasden 
Research team wrote: "At the risk of offending Enron's mighty investor rela­
tions army [emphasis added], we will attempt to paint a simplistic portrait of 
what we believe Enron really is" (Wasden, Ayers, and Arias 2001, 4). This 
firm appears to have emerged unscathed after questioning Enron's future pros­
pects, but other dissenting analysts were not as fortunate. One of these was 
Chung Wu of DBS PaineWebber (Lozano 2002; Babineck 2002). Another 
was Daniel Scotto, a bond analyst in New York for BNP Paribas, a French 
securities firm (Smith 2002). 

Wu sent an e-mail message to his clients on August 21,2001, expressing 
concern about Enron's financial future and advising them to sell their Enron 
stock. He was fired the same day. This happened a week after Jeffrey Skilling 
resigned as Enron's chief executive officer. At the time, Enron stock was in 
the range of $36, less than half of its peak earlier in the year. In a regulatory 
filing dated August 31,2001, to the National Association of Securities Deal­
ers, Wu made the following statement: "Enron management was not pleased 
and due to the employee stock option relationship DBS PaineWebber has with 
them, the pressure came from my corporate office to the branch level (Hous­
ton) to dismiss me." (For detailed newswire reports, see Lozano 2002; Babineck 
2002.) DBS PaineWebber did not deny that it had sacked Chung, nor did the 
firm deny that the dismissal came after complaints about the e-mail from the 
Enron executive in charge of its stock option program (Washington Post March 
28, 2002, A47). 

Another example is that of Scotto, a thirty-year Wall Street veteran, who 
issued a research report to his clients on August 23,2001, in which he lowered 
his recommendation on Enron from "buy" to "neutral" and suggested that 
Enron be used as a "source of funds" (i.e., in analyst language, "consider selling 
the stock to raise funds for other investments"). He followed up his written report 
with a conference call, recorded from the firm's trading floor, wherein he ad­
vised his clients to dump Enron securities. Shortly afterward, he was demoted, 
put on leave, and then terminated. BNP Paribas declined to give reporters 
reasons for Scotto's termination but made the statement that it "was com­
pletely unrelated to any research he wrote on any company, including Enron." 
Scotto, however, claims that BNP Paribus had an investment-banking rela­
tionship with Enron. (For the detailed business news report, see Smith 2002.) 

Management's seemingly aggressive and intimidating manner of handling 
adverse analyst reports should have incensed the financial analyst community, 
as it impairs its independence. The Reed Wasden quote shows that analysts 
were well aware of the "mighty investor relations army." This behavior toward 
analysts does not inspire confidence in reported numbers. One has to ask the 
question: What is Enron trying to hide? It is in this light that we scrutinize 
asset balances and the related accounting policies. 
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EnronEnron inin undoingundoing distortionsdistortions beforebefore performingperforming ourour financialfinancial analysis.analysis. AsAs aa 
result,result, netnet incomeincome willwill changechange materiallymaterially forfor 19991999 andand 2000,2000, withwith aa resultantresultant 
decreasedecrease inin earningsearnings perper share,share, andand netnet assetsassets fromfrom priceprice riskrisk managementmanagement 
activitiesactivities willwill bebe reduced.reduced. WeWe acknowledgeacknowledge thatthat ourour adjustmentadjustment hashas limita­limita­
tions,tions, inin thatthat thethe fullfull amountamount ofof thethe increaseincrease inin netnet assetsassets (included(included inin ourour 
adjustmentadjustment becausebecause thesethese amountsamounts havehave notnot beenbeen discloseddisclosed separatelyseparately onon thethe 
cashcash flowflow statements)statements) doesdoes notnot havehave anan effecteffect onon netnet income.income. TheThe effecteffect isis 
limitedlimited toto unrealizedunrealized gains,gains, whichwhich cannotcannot bebe determineddetermined becausebecause ofof lacklack ofof 
informationinformation inin Enron'sEnron's disclosures.disclosures. 

WeWe willwill nownow proceedproceed withwith anan examinationexamination ofof thethe company'scompany's venturesventures intointo 
broadband.broadband. WeWe analyzeanalyze thethe MD&AMD&A andand thethe BroadbandBroadband ServicesServices businessbusiness seg­seg­
ment,ment, whichwhich makesmakes itsits debutdebut inin thethe 20002000 annualannual report,report, althoughalthough EnronEnron hadhad 
dabbleddabbled inin broadbandbroadband sincesince 19981998 atat thethe veryvery latestlatest butbut hadhad beenbeen incorporatingincorporating 
itit inin otherother businessbusiness segmentsegment disclosures.disclosures. TheThe MD&AMD&A disclosuredisclosure includesincludes thethe 
followingfollowing statement:statement: "Broadband"Broadband ServicesServices isis constructingconstructing ...... aa nationwidenationwide 
fiber-opticfiber-optic networknetwork thatthat consistsconsists ofofbothboth fiberfiber deployeddeployed byby EnronEnron andand acquiredacquired 
capacitycapacity onon otherother non-Enronnon-Enron networksnetworks andand isis managedmanaged byby Enron'sEnron's BroadbandBroadband 
OperatingOperating SystemSystem software.software. EnronEnron isis extendingextending itsits market-makingmarket-making andand riskrisk 
managementmanagement skillsskills fromfrom itsits energyenergy businessbusiness toto developdevelop thethe bandwidthbandwidth interme­interme­
diationdiation business"business" (2000(2000 annualannual report,report, 25).25). TheThe segmentsegment disclosuredisclosure showsshows identi­identi­
fiablefiable assetsassets ($1,313($1,313 million)million) andand capitalcapital expendituresexpenditures ($436($436 million)million) forfor thethe 20002000 
fiscalfiscal year.year. ThisThis isis aa newnew industry,industry, andand thethe riskrisk isis high.high. InIn theory,theory, thisthis couldcould bebe 
aa veryvery successfulsuccessful ventureventure forfor Enron,Enron, butbut ifif aa glutglut ofof fiber-opticfiber-optic capacitycapacity devel­devel­
ops,ops, EnronEnron maymay havehave toto taketake aa hithit againstagainst itsits assetasset values.values. ThisThis would,would, inin turn,turn, 
reducereduce netnet income.income. WeWe cannotcannot predictpredict anan outcome,outcome, butbut thethe riskrisk isis high,high, espe­espe­
ciallycially since,since, afterafter threethree yearsyears ofof experimentation,experimentation, broadbandbroadband generatedgenerated aa netnet 
lossloss ofof $60$60 millionmillion forfor thethe 20002000 fiscalfiscal yearyear (2000(2000 annualannual report,report, 51).51). 

TheThe MaintenanceMaintenance ofofInvestorInvestor ConfidenceConfidence andandAccessAccess toto 
FinancingFinancing Resources,Resources, andand ResultantResultant FocusFocus onon EarningsEarnings perper 
ShareShare andand ComponentsComponents ofofOtherOther KeyKey FinancialFinancial RatiosRatios 

AssetsAssets areare oftenoften componentscomponents ofof keykey ratios,ratios, eithereither asas anan absoluteabsolute amount,amount, oror 
becausebecause ofof thethe keykey rolerole thatthat assetasset valuationvaluation playsplays inin incomeincome determination,determination, 
stemmingstemming fromfrom thethe relationshiprelationship betweenbetween assetsassets andand revenuesrevenues andand assetsassets andand 
expenses.expenses. AA majormajor concernconcern regardingregarding thisthis riskrisk areaarea isis coveredcovered inin thethe precedingpreceding 
discussiondiscussion onon Enron'sEnron's changechange inin operatingoperating activities.activities. However,However, wewe wantwant toto 
determinedetermine whetherwhether therethere areare anyany otherother assetasset amountsamounts thatthat wewe needneed toto examineexamine 
moremore closely,closely, afterafter wewe considerconsider thethe degreedegree ofof riskrisk withwith regardregard toto possiblepossible assetasset 
misstatement.misstatement. 

ToTo getget aa feelfeel forfor thisthis risk,risk, wewe askask thethe followingfollowing questions:questions: HowHow goodgood isis 
Enron'sEnron's investorinvestor relationsrelations program?program? HowHow doesdoes managementmanagement dealdeal withwith ana­ana­
lysts?lysts? Here,Here, wewe resortresort toto externalexternal sourcessources forfor answers.answers. 
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Enron in undoing distortions before performing our financial analysis. As a
result, net income will change materially for 1999 and 2000, with a resultan
decrease in earnings per share, and net assets from price risk managemen
activities will be reduced. We acknowledge that our adjustment has limita­
tions, in that the full amount of the increase in net assets (included in our
adjustment because these amounts have not been disclosed separately on the
cash flow statements) does not have an effect on net income. The effect is
limited to unrealized gains, which cannot be determined because of lack o
information in Enron's disclosures. 

We will now proceed with an examination of the company's ventures into
broadband. We analyze the MD&A and the Broadband Services business seg­
ment, which makes its debut in the 2000 annual report, although Enron had
dabbled in broadband since 1998 at the very latest but had been incorporating
it in other business segment disclosures. The MD&A disclosure includes the
following statement: "Broadband Services is constructing ... a nationwide
fiber-optic network that consists of both fiber deployed by Enron and acquired
capacity on other non-Enron networks and is managed by Enron's Broadband
Operating System software. Enron is extending its market-making and risk
management skills from its energy business to develop the bandwidth interme­
diation business" (2000 annual report, 25). The segment disclosure shows identi­
fiable assets ($1,313 million) and capital expenditures ($436 million) for the 2000
fiscal year. This is a new industry, and the risk is high. In theory, this could be
a very successful venture for Enron, but if a glut of fiber-optic capacity devel­

,I"	 ops, Enron may have to take a hit against its asset values. This would, in turn,
reduce net income. We cannot predict an outcome, but the risk is high, espe­
cially since, after three years of experimentation, broadband generated a net
loss of $60 million for the 2000 fiscal year (2000 annual report, 51). 

The Maintenance ofInvestor Confidence and Access to 
Financing Resources, and Resultant Focus on Earnings per 
Share and Components ofOther Key Financial Ratios 

Assets are often components of key ratios, either as an absolute amount, or
because of the key role that asset valuation plays in income determination,
stemming from the relationship between assets and revenues and assets and
expenses. A major concern regarding this risk area is covered in the preceding
discussion on Enron's change in operating activities. However, we want to
determine whether there are any other asset amounts that we need to examine
more closely, after we consider the degree of risk with regard to possible asset
misstatement. 

To get a feel for this risk, we ask the following questions: How good is
Enron's investor relations program? How does management deal with ana­
lysts? Here, we resort to external sources for answers. 

FinancialFinancial AnalystsAnalysts andand EnronEnron 8585 

aWeWe couldcould findfind onlyonly a fewfew voicesvoices ofof dissentdissent inin thethe analystanalyst communitycommunity priorprior 
toto NovemberNovember 2001.2001. ForFor example,example, asas farfar backback asas MarchMarch 2001,2001, thethe ReedReed WasdenWasden 
ResearchResearch teamteam wrote:wrote: "At"At thethe riskrisk ofof offendingoffending Enron'sEnron's mightymighty investorinvestor rela­rela­

ationstions armyarmy [emphasis[emphasis added],added], wewe willwill attemptattempt toto paintpaint a simplisticsimplistic portraitportrait ofof 
whatwhat wewe believebelieve EnronEnron reallyreally is"is" (Wasden,(Wasden, Ayers,Ayers, andand AriasArias 2001,2001, 4).4). ThisThis 
firmfirm appearsappears toto havehave emergedemerged unscathedunscathed afterafter questioningquestioning Enron'sEnron's futurefuture pros­pros­
pects,pects, butbut otherother dissentingdissenting analystsanalysts werewere notnot asas fortunate.fortunate. OneOne ofof thesethese waswas 
ChungChung WuWu ofof DBSDBS PaineWebberPaineWebber (Lozano(Lozano 2002;2002; BabineckBabineck 2002).2002). AnotherAnother 

a awaswas DanielDaniel Scotto,Scotto, a bondbond analystanalyst inin NewNew YorkYork forfor BNPBNP Paribas,Paribas, a FrenchFrench 
securitiessecurities firmfirm (Smith(Smith 2002).2002). 

WuWu sentsent anan e-maile-mail messagemessage toto hishis clientsclients onon AugustAugust 21,2001,21,2001, expressingexpressing 
concernconcern aboutabout Enron'sEnron's financialfinancial futurefuture andand advisingadvising themthem toto sellsell theirtheir EnronEnron 
stock.stock. HeHe waswas firedfired thethe samesame day.day. ThisThis happenedhappened aa weekweek afterafter JeffreyJeffrey SkillingSkilling 
resignedresigned asas Enron'sEnron's chiefchief executiveexecutive officer.officer. AtAt thethe time,time, EnronEnron stockstock waswas inin 
thethe rangerange ofof $36,$36, lessless thanthan halfhalf ofof itsits peakpeak earlierearlier inin thethe year.year. InIn aa regulatoryregulatory 

31,2001,filingfiling dateddated AugustAugust 31, 2001, toto thethe NationalNational AssociationAssociation ofof SecuritiesSecurities Deal­Deal­
ers,ers, WuWu mademade thethe followingfollowing statement:statement: "Enron"Enron managementmanagement waswas notnot pleasedpleased 
andand duedue toto thethe employeeemployee stockstock optionoption relationshiprelationship DBSDBS PaineWebberPaineWebber hashas withwith 
them,them, thethe pressurepressure camecame fromfrom mymy corporatecorporate officeoffice toto thethe branchbranch levellevel (Hous­(Hous­
ton)ton) toto dismissdismiss me."me." (For(For detaileddetailed newsnews wirewire reports,reports, seesee LozanoLozano 2002;2002; BabineckBabineck 
2002.)2002.) DBSDBS PaineWebberPaineWebber diddid notnot denydeny thatthat itit hadhad sackedsacked Chung,Chung, nornor diddid thethe 
firmfirm denydeny thatthat thethe dismissaldismissal camecame afterafter complaintscomplaints aboutabout thethe e-maile-mail fromfrom thethe 
EnronEnron executiveexecutive inin chargecharge ofof itsits stockstock optionoption programprogram (Washington(Washington PostPost MarchMarch 
28,28, 2002,2002, A47).A47). 

AnotherAnother exampleexample isis thatthat ofof Scotto,Scotto, aa thirty-yearthirty-year WallWall StreetStreet veteran,veteran, whowho 
issuedissued aa researchresearch reportreport toto hishis clientsclients onon AugustAugust 23,2001,23,2001, inin whichwhich hehe loweredlowered 
hishis recommendationrecommendation onon EnronEnron fromfrom "buy""buy" toto "neutral""neutral" andand suggestedsuggested thatthat 
EnronEnron bebe usedused asas aa "source"source ofof funds"funds" (i.e.,(i.e., inin analystanalyst language,language, "consider"consider sellingselling 
thethe stockstock toto raiseraise fundsfunds forfor otherother investments").investments"). HeHe followedfollowed upup hishis writtenwritten reportreport 
withwith aa conferenceconference call,call, recordedrecorded fromfrom thethe firm'sfirm's tradingtrading floor,floor, whereinwherein hehe ad­ad­
visedvised hishis clientsclients toto dumpdump EnronEnron securities.securities. ShortlyShortly afterward,afterward, hehe waswas demoted,demoted, 
putput onon leave,leave, andand thenthen terminated.terminated. BNPBNP ParibasParibas declineddeclined toto givegive reportersreporters 
reasonsreasons forfor Scotto'sScotto's terminationtermination butbut mademade thethe statementstatement thatthat itit "was"was com­com­
pletelypletely unrelatedunrelated toto anyany researchresearch hehe wrotewrote onon anyany company,company, includingincluding Enron."Enron." 
Scotto,Scotto, however,however, claimsclaims thatthat BNPBNP ParibusParibus hadhad anan investment-bankinginvestment-banking rela­rela­
tionshiptionship withwith Enron.Enron. (For(For thethe detaileddetailed businessbusiness newsnews report,report, seesee SmithSmith 2002.)2002.) 

Management'sManagement's seeminglyseemingly aggressiveaggressive andand intimidatingintimidating mannermanner ofofhandlinghandling 
adverseadverse analystanalyst reportsreports shouldshouldhavehave incensedincensedthethe financialfinancial analystanalystcommunity,community, 
asas itit impairsimpairs itsits independence.independence. TheThe ReedReed WasdenWasden quotequote showsshows thatthat analystsanalysts 
werewerewellwell awareawareofofthethe "mighty"mightyinvestorinvestorrelationsrelationsarmy."army."ThisThisbehaviorbehaviortowardtoward 
analystsanalysts doesdoes notnot inspireinspire confidenceconfidence inin reportedreportednumbers.numbers. OneOne hashas toto askask thethe 
question:question: WhatWhat isis EnronEnron tryingtrying toto hide?hide? ItIt isis inin thisthis lightlight thatthat wewe scrutinizescrutinize 
assetassetbalancesbalances andandthetherelatedrelatedaccountingaccountingpolicies.policies. 
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flow statement better fulfills our information requirements for merchant as­
sets and investments than it did for net assets from risk-management activi­
ties, we are concerned about the additions and unrealized gains being aggregated 
and shown on a single line item. This severely hampered our ability to make 
accurate adjustments for unrealized gains, which may have much less of an 
impact on net income than we are surmising. There is a lack of disaggregated 
information disclosure for this line item, but due to the potential for manage­
ment manipulation of these numbers, we decided to treat this line item as an 
unrealized gain in its entirety, as we did for net assets from risk-management 
activities. The potential impact is too great for us to ignore such an adjust­
ment, and we would rather err on the side of caution. We do, however, realize 
that our adjustment has limitations, in that the "additions" component of the 
line item "Additions and Unrealized Gains" does not have an effect on net 
income. Our adjustment is therefore misstated by the amount of the unknown 
cost of these additions. 

Hard-asset, high-risk ventures, such as Dabhol Power and Wessex Water, 
are included in unconsolidated affiliates, and as such the assets are kept offEnron's 
balance sheet. This issue is dealt with under Entity Accounting Analysis. 

Liability Analysis and Shareholders' Equity Analysis 

There are two types of claims against a firm's assets: liabilities and share­
holders' equity. Equity is, by definition, a residual value. Therefore, fair valu­
ations of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses automatically result in a 
fair residual value. Accounting questions concerning equity generally revolve 
around hybrid securities, interest rates used to value long-term debt, and the 
allocation of equity amounts between reserves, retained earnings, and capital. 
Some important questions concerning Enron's liabilities are: Does the firm 
have a business strategy that appears to favor off-balance sheet financing to 
improve debt ratios? Are these significant? (see Palepu et al. 2000, 5-1 to 5-2, 
5-14). We now examine liabilities and equity under each of the key risk areas. 

The Financial Success ofDealer and Trading Activities 

Enron's ''Accounting for Price Risk Management" is described under Asset 
Analysis. Just as these contracts have asset implications to capture rights, they 
also capture Enron's contractual obligations. The difference between the as­
sets and liabilities for each contract results in unrealized gains or losses, using 
the mark-to-market method of valuation, which has already been discussed 
under Asset Analysis. The resultant liabilities are shown as "Liabilities from 
Price Risk Management Activities" on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. We 
have already discussed the reasoning behind our decision to reverse such un­
realized gains, even though the exact amount could not be determined due to 
incomplete information. 
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TheThe followingfollowing assetasset balancesbalances catchcatch ourour eye:eye: first,first, "Investments"Investments inin andand ad­ad­
vancesvances toto unconsolidatedunconsolidatedequityequity affiliates,"affiliates," whichwhich increasedincreased byby 211211%%betweenbetween 
19961996 andand 2000,2000, fromfrom $1,701$1,701 millionmillion toto $5,294$5,294 million;million; second,second, "Other"Other invest­invest­
ments,"ments," whichwhich increasedincreased byby 236%,236%, overover thethe samesame period,period, fromfrom $1,626$1,626 millionmillion 
toto $5,459$5,459 million.million. AA relatedrelated accountingaccounting policypolicy intensifiedintensified ourour interest:interest: "In­"In­
vestmentsvestments inin unconsolidatedunconsolidated affiliatesaffiliates areare accountedaccounted forfor byby thethe equityequity method,method, 
exceptexcept forfor certaincertain investmentsinvestments resultingresulting fromfrom Enron'sEnron's merchantmerchant investmentinvestment 
activitiesactivities whichwhich areare includedincluded atat marketmarket valuevalue inin 'Other'Other Investments'Investments' inin thethe 
ConsolidatedConsolidated BalanceBalance Sheet.Sheet. SeeSee NotesNotes 44 andand 9.9. WhereWhere acquiredacquired assetsassets areare 
accountedaccounted forfor underunder thethe equityequity methodmethod basedbased onon temporarytemporary control,control, earningsearnings 
andand losseslosses areare recognizedrecognized onlyonly forfor thethe portionportion ofof thethe investmentinvestment toto bebe retained"retained" 
(2000(2000 annualannual report,report, 37).37). OnOn readingreading footnotesfootnotes 44 andand 9,9, wewe decidedecide thatthat thisthis isis 
aa majormajor areaarea ofofconcernconcern andand thatthat thesethese assetsassets willwill bestbest bebe discusseddiscussed underunder thethe 
EquityEquity AccountingAccounting AnalysisAnalysis subsection.subsection. 

Second,Second, wewe wouldwould likelike toto seesee moremore transparencytransparency onon "Other""Other" assets,assets, classi­classi­
fiedfied underunder "Investments"Investments andand OtherOther Assets."Assets." TheThe amountsamounts areare material-formaterial-for 
example,example, $5,459$5,459 millionmillion forfor 20002000 andand $4,681$4,681 forfor 1999.1999. WithoutWithout knowingknowing thethe 
naturenature ofof thesethese assets,assets, itit isis difficultdifficult toto determinedetermine whetherwhether wewe wouldwould preferprefer toto 
expenseexpense partpart oror allall ofof thesethese assets.assets. 

TheThe FinancialFinancial SuccessSuccess ofofInternationalInternational High-Risk,High-Risk, 
Hard-AssetHard-Asset VenturesVentures andand ComplexComplex 
PartnershipPartnership andand EquityEquity OwnershipOwnership StructuresStructures 

FootnoteFootnote 44 (2000(2000 annualannual report,report, 40),40), "Merchant"Merchant Activities,"Activities," showsshows aa splitsplit 
betweenbetween "Merchant"Merchant Investments"Investments" inin thethe amountamount ofof $601$601 millionmillion (included(included inin 
"Other"Other Assets"Assets" onon thethe balancebalance sheet)sheet) andand "Merchant"Merchant Assets"Assets" ofof $89$89 millionmillion (in­(in­
cludedcluded inin "Investments"Investments inin andand AdvancesAdvances toto UnconsolidatedUnconsolidated EquityEquity Affiliates").Affiliates"). 

TheThe cashcash flowflow statementsstatements showshow thatthat bothboth merchantmerchant investmentsinvestments andand mer­mer­
chantchant assetsassets areare generatorsgenerators ofof netnet incomeincome fromfrom operatingoperating activities,activities, despitedespite thethe 
factfact thatthat aa largelarge portionportion isis includedincluded underunder noncurrentnoncurrent assetsassets onon thethe balancebalance 
sheet.sheet. ThisThis suggestssuggests thethe possibilitypossibility thatthat cashcash flowflow fromfrom operationsoperations maymay bebe 
overstatedoverstated (as(as waswas possiblepossible withwith netnet assetsassets fromfrom price-managementprice-management activities).activities). 
InIn thisthis regard,regard, disclosuresdisclosures inin thethe cashcash flowflow statementsstatements showshow howhow accrual-basedaccrual-based 
netnet incomeincome isis convertedconverted toto cashcash flowflow fromfrom operations.operations. InIn 2000,2000, thethe lineline itemitem 
"Additions"Additions andand UnrealizedUnrealized Gains"Gains" onon merchantmerchant assetsassets andand investmentsinvestments isis de­de­
ductedducted fromfrom netnet incomeincome toto arrivearrive atat cashcash flowflow fromfrom operatingoperating activities,activities, toto thethe 
tunetune ofof $1,295$1,295 million.million. ComparativeComparative amountsamounts forfor thisthis lineline itemitem werewere 1999,1999, 
$827$827 million;million; 1998,1998, $721$721 million;million; 1997,1997, $308$308 million;million; andand 1996,1996, $192$192 mil­mil­
lion.lion. WeWe havehave alreadyalready decideddecided toto adjustadjust netnet incomeincome fromfrom operationsoperations down­down­
wardward forfor unrealizedunrealized gainsgains onon price-risk-managementprice-risk-management activities;activities; aa similarsimilar 
adjustmentadjustment forfor "Additions"Additions andand UnrealizedUnrealized Gains"Gains" onon merchantmerchant assetsassets andand in­in­
vestmentsvestments hashas aa profoundprofound negativenegative affectaffect onon netnet income,income, especiallyespecially forfor 2000.2000. 
"Other"Other Assets"Assets" willwill alsoalso bebe decreased,decreased, forfor dualityduality purposes.purposes. AlthoughAlthough thethe cashcash 
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The following asset balances catch our eye: first, "Investments in and ad­
vances to unconsolidated equity affiliates," which increased by 211 % between 
1996 and 2000, from $1,701 million to $5,294 million; second, "Other invest­
ments," which increased by 236%, over the same period, from $1,626 million 
to $5,459 million. A related accounting policy intensified our interest: "In­
vestments in unconsolidated affiliates are accounted for by the equity method, 
except for certain investments resulting from Enron's merchant investment 
activities which are included at market value in 'Other Investments' in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. See Notes 4 and 9. Where acquired assets are 
accounted for under the equity method based on temporary control, earnings 
and losses are recognized only for the portion of the investment to be retained" 
(2000 annual report, 37). On reading footnotes 4 and 9, we decide that this is 
a major area of concern and that these assets will best be discussed under the 
Equity Accounting Analysis subsection. 

Second, we would like to see more transparency on "Other" assets, classi­
fied under "Investments and Other Assets." The amounts are material-for 
example, $5,459 million for 2000 and $4,681 for 1999. Without knowing the 
nature of these assets, it is difficult to determine whether we would prefer to 
expense part or all of these assets. 

The Financial Success ofInternational High-Risk, 
Hard-Asset Ventures and Complex 
Partnership and Equity Ownership Structures 

Footnote 4 (2000 annual report, 40), "Merchant Activities," shows a split 
between "Merchant Investments" in the amount of $601 million (included in 
"Other Assets" on the balance sheet) and "Merchant Assets" of $89 million (in­
cluded in "Investments in and Advances to Unconsolidated Equity Affiliates"). 

The cash flow statements show that both merchant investments and mer­
chant assets are generators of net income from operating activities, despite the 
fact that a large portion is included under noncurrent assets on the balance 
sheet. This suggests the possibility that cash flow from operations may be 
overstated (as was possible with net assets from price-management activities). 
In this regard, disclosures in the cash flow statements show how accrual-based 
net income is converted to cash flow from operations. In 2000, the line item 
"Additions and Unrealized Gains" on merchant assets and investments is de­
ducted from net income to arrive at cash flow from operating activities, to the 
tune of $1,295 million. Comparative amounts for this line item were 1999, 
$827 million; 1998, $721 million; 1997, $308 million; and 1996, $192 mil­
lion. We have already decided to adjust net income from operations down­
ward for unrealized gains on price-risk-management activities; a similar 
adjustment for "Additions and Unrealized Gains" on merchant assets and in­
vestments has a profound negative affect on net income, especially for 2000. 
"Other Assets" will also be decreased, for duality purposes. Although the cash 
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flowflow statementstatement betterbetter fulfillsfulfills ourour informationinformation requirementsrequirements forfor merchantmerchant as­as­
setssets andand investmentsinvestments thanthan itit diddid forfor netnet assetsassets fromfrom risk-managementrisk-management activi­activi­
ties,ties, wewe areare concernedconcerned aboutabout thethe additionsadditions andand unrealizedunrealized gainsgains beingbeing aggregatedaggregated 
andand shownshown onon aa singlesingle lineline item.item. ThisThis severelyseverely hamperedhampered ourour abilityability toto makemake 
accurateaccurate adjustmentsadjustments forfor unrealizedunrealized gains,gains, whichwhich maymay havehave muchmuch lessless ofof anan 
impactimpact onon netnet incomeincome thanthan wewe areare surmising.surmising. ThereThere isis aa lacklack ofof disdis aggregatedaggregated 
informationinformation disclosuredisclosure forfor thisthis lineline item,item, butbut duedue toto thethe potentialpotential forfor manage­manage­
mentment manipulationmanipulation ofof thesethese numbers,numbers, wewe decideddecided toto treattreat thisthis lineline itemitem asas anan 
unrealizedunrealized gaingain inin itsits entirety,entirety, asas wewe diddid forfor netnet assetsassets fromfrom risk-managementrisk-management 
activities.activities. TheThe potentialpotential impactimpact isis tootoo greatgreat forfor usus toto ignoreignore suchsuch anan adjust­adjust­
ment,ment, andand wewe wouldwould ratherrather errerr onon thethe sideside ofof caution.caution. WeWe do,do, however,however, realizerealize 
thatthat ourour adjustmentadjustment hashas limitations,limitations, inin thatthat thethe "additions""additions" componentcomponent ofof thethe 
lineline itemitem "Additions"Additions andand UnrealizedUnrealized Gains"Gains" doesdoes notnot havehave anan effecteffect onon netnet 
income.income. OurOur adjustmentadjustment isis thereforetherefore misstatedmisstated byby thethe amountamount ofof thethe unknownunknown 
costcost ofof thesethese additions.additions. 

Hard-asset,Hard-asset, high-riskhigh-risk ventures,ventures, suchsuch asas DabholDabhol PowerPower andand WessexWessex Water,Water, 
areare includedincluded inin unconsolidatedunconsolidated affiliates,affiliates, andand asas suchsuch thethe assetsassets areare keptkept offEnron'soffEnron's 
balancebalance sheet.sheet. ThisThis issueissue isis dealtdealt withwith underunder EntityEntity AccountingAccounting Analysis.Analysis. 

LiabilityLiability AnalysisAnalysis andand Shareholders'Shareholders' EquityEquity AnalysisAnalysis 

ThereThere areare twotwo typestypes ofof claimsclaims againstagainst aa firm'sfirm's assets:assets: liabilitiesliabilities andand share­share­
holders'holders' equity.equity. EquityEquity is,is, byby definition,definition, aa residualresidual value.value. Therefore,Therefore, fairfair valu­valu­
ationsations ofof assets,assets, liabilities,liabilities, revenues,revenues, andand expensesexpenses automaticallyautomatically resultresult inin aa 
fairfair residualresidual value.value. AccountingAccounting questionsquestions concerningconcerning equityequity generallygenerally revolverevolve 
aroundaround hybridhybrid securities,securities, interestinterest ratesrates usedused toto valuevalue long-termlong-term debt,debt, andand thethe 
allocationallocation ofof equityequity amountsamounts betweenbetween reserves,reserves, retainedretained earnings,earnings, andand capital.capital. 
SomeSome importantimportant questionsquestions concerningconcerning Enron'sEnron's liabilitiesliabilities are:are: DoesDoes thethe firmfirm 
havehave aa businessbusiness strategystrategy thatthat appearsappears toto favorfavor off-balanceoff-balance sheetsheet financingfinancing toto 
improveimprove debtdebt ratios?ratios? AreAre thesethese significant?significant? (see(see PalepuPalepu etet al.al. 2000,2000, 5-15-1 toto 5-2,5-2, 
5-14).5-14). WeWe nownow examineexamine liabilitiesliabilities andand equityequity underunder eacheach ofof thethe keykey riskrisk areas.areas. 

TheThe FinancialFinancial SuccessSuccess ofof DealerDealer andand TradingTrading ActivitiesActivities 

Enron'sEnron's ''Accounting''Accounting forfor PricePrice RiskRisk Management"Management" isis describeddescribed underunder AssetAsset 
Analysis.Analysis. JustJust asas thesethese contractscontracts havehave assetasset implicationsimplications toto capturecapture rights,rights, theythey 
alsoalso capturecapture Enron'sEnron's contractualcontractual obligations.obligations. TheThe differencedifference betweenbetween thethe as­as­
setssets andand liabilitiesliabilities forfor eacheach contractcontract resultsresults inin unrealizedunrealized gainsgains oror losses,losses, usingusing 
thethe mark-to-marketmark-to-market methodmethod ofof valuation,valuation, whichwhich hashas alreadyalready beenbeen discusseddiscussed 
underunder AssetAsset Analysis.Analysis. TheThe resultantresultant liabilitiesliabilities areare shownshown asas "Liabilities"Liabilities fromfrom 
PricePrice RiskRisk ManagementManagement Activities"Activities" onon thethe ConsolidatedConsolidated BalanceBalance Sheet.Sheet. WeWe 
havehave alreadyalready discusseddiscussed thethe reasoningreasoning behindbehind ourour decisiondecision toto reversereverse suchsuch un­un­
realizedrealized gains,gains, eveneven thoughthough thethe exactexact amountamount couldcould notnot bebe determineddetermined duedue toto 
incompleteincomplete information.information. 
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Table 5.2
 
Enron's Reported Long-Term Debt Maturity Values (In Millions of U.S.
 
Dollars)
 

Matures 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 
1998 Report 541 413 666 182 656 N/A N/A 
1999 Report N/A 670 569 432 494 493 N/A 
2000 Report N/A N/A 2,112 750 852 646 1,592 

In 1999, Enron entered into a Share Settlement Agreement under which Enron could 
be obligated, under certain conditions, to deliver additional shares of common stock or 
Series B Preferred Stock to Whitewing for the amount that the market price of the 
converted Enron common shares is less than $28 per share. In 2000, Enron increased 
the strike price in the Share Settlement Agreement to $48.55 per share in exchange for 
an additional capital contribution in Whitewing by third-party investors.... Absent 
certain defaults or other specified events, Enron has the option to acquire the third­
party investors' interests. HEnron does not acquire the third-party investors' interests 
before January 2003, or earlier upon certain specified events, Whitewing may liqui­
date its assets and dissolve. (p. 43) 

Whitewing is one of Enron's 50 percent unconsolidated equity affiliates. 
This is but the tip of the iceberg. A separate disclosure note reveals (2000 
annual report, 42), "In 2000 and 1999, Enron sold approximately $632 mil­
lion and $192 million, respectively, of merchant investments and other assets 
to Whitewing. Enron recognized no gains or losses in connection with these 
transactions." This is but one of many very troubling and confusing disclo­
sures of intermingled "unconsolidated affiliate" disclosures. 

Revenue Analysis 

Revenue should only be recognized if Enron has provided all, or substan­
tially all, of the goods or services to the customer and if the customer with 
reasonable confidence is expected to pay cash. 

The Financial Success ofDealer and Trading Activities 

The 2000 quarterly results show increasing and unprecedented levels of rev­
enue for each quarter. For example, revenues for the third quarter skyrocketed 
from $16.9 billion for the preceding quarter to $30 billion, a 77 percent increase. 
The fourth quarter shows revenues of $40.8 billion. A partial explanation is 
that unrealized gains resulting from "Assets from Price-Risk-Management 
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TheThe MaintenanceMaintenance ofofInvestorInvestor ConfidenceConfidence andandAccessAccess toto 
FinancingFinancing Resources,Resources, andand ResultantResultant FocusFocus onon EarningsEarnings perper 
ShareShare andand ComponentsComponents ofofOtherOther KeyKey FinancialFinancial RatiosRatios 

timeframeFootnoteFootnote 77 ofofthethe19981998 annualannual reportreport (p.(p. 55)55) delineatesdelineates anan importantimportant timeframe 
withwith regardregard toto debt:debt: "Enron"Enron hashas creditcredit facilitiesfacilities withwith domesticdomestic andand foreignforeign 
banksbanks whichwhich provideprovide forfor anan aggregateaggregate ofof $1.67$1.67 billionbillion inin long-termlong-term committedcommitted 

short-termcreditcredit andand $1.37$1.37 billionbillion inin short-term committedcommitted credit.credit. ExpirationExpiration datesdates ofof 
thethe committedcommitted facilitiesfacilities rangerange fromfrom AprilApril 19991999 toto JuneJune 20022002........ CertainCertain creditcredit 
facilitiesfacilities containcontain covenantscovenants whichwhich mustmust bebe metmet toto borrowborrow funds."funds." FromFrom thisthis 
quote,quote, itit isis clearclear thatthat continuedcontinued financialfinancial successsuccess duringduring thisthis windowwindow periodperiod isis 
essentialessential toto thethe company'scompany's abilityability toto maintainmaintain externalexternal financing.financing. ItIt providesprovides aa 
veryvery strongstrong incentiveincentive forfor managementmanagement toto maintainmaintain thethe ratiosratios stipulatedstipulated inin thethe 
debtdebt covenants.covenants. 

InIn thethe 20002000 annualannual report,report, inin thethe MD&AMD&A (p.(p. 27),27), managementmanagement confirmsconfirms thisthis 
riskrisk factor:factor: "Enron"Enron isis partyparty toto certaincertain financialfinancial contractscontracts whichwhich containcontain provi­provi­
sionssions forfor earlyearly settlementsettlement inin thethe eventevent ofof aa significantsignificant marketmarket priceprice declinedecline ...... 
oror ifif thethe creditcredit ratingsratings forfor Enron'sEnron's secured,secured, seniorsenior long-termlong-term debtdebt obligationsobligations 
fallfall belowbelow investmentinvestment gradegrade........ Enron'sEnron's continuedcontinued investmentinvestment gradegrade statusstatus isis 
criticalcritical toto thethe successsuccess ofof itsits wholesalewholesale businessesbusinesses asas wellwell asas itsits abilityability toto main­main­
taintain adequateadequate liquidity."liquidity." AccordingAccording toto thethe 1998-20001998-2000 annualannual reports,reports, EnronEnron 
consistentlyconsistently maintainedmaintained itsits creditcredit ratings.ratings. ButBut thethe possibilitypossibility ofof anan understate­understate­
mentment ofof liabilitiesliabilities isis aa keykey consideration,consideration, especiallyespecially whenwhen favorablefavorable creditcredit rat­rat­
ingsings areare soso criticalcritical toto thethe firm'sfirm's success.success. 

ToTo getget aa feelfeel forfor long-termlong-term debtdebt obligations,obligations, wewe summarizesummarize thethe disclosuresdisclosures onon 
annualannual maturitiesmaturities oflong-termoflong-term debtdebt outstandingoutstanding forfor 19981998 toto 20002000 (see(see tabletable 5.2).5.2). 

InIn thethe 20002000 annualannual reportreport (p.(p. 41),41), long-termlong-term debtdebt duedue duringduring 20012001 rocketedrocketed 
toto $2.1$2.1 billion,billion, fromfrom $569$569 thethe yearyear before.before. TheThe suddensudden escalationescalation inin thethe amountamount 
ofof thisthis debtdebt isis aa majormajor causecause forfor concern,concern, especiallyespecially whenwhen comparedcompared toto priorprior 
yearyear long-termlong-term debtdebt levels.levels. WeWe willwill placeplace particularparticular emphasisemphasis onon thisthis riskrisk areaarea 
whenwhen wewe dodo ratioratio analysisanalysis inin thethe financialfinancial analysisanalysis section.section. 

TheThe FinancialFinancial SuccessSuccess ofofInternationalInternational High-Risk,High-Risk, Hard-AssetHard-Asset 
VenturesVentures andand ComplexComplex PartnershipPartnership andand EquityEquity OwnershipOwnership 
StructuresStructures 

UnconsolidatedUnconsolidated affiliatesaffiliates provideprovide managementmanagement withwith thethe opportunityopportunity toto un­un­
derstatederstate liabilities.liabilities. ThisThis topictopic isis fullyfully investigatedinvestigated inin thethe subsectionsubsection dealingdealing 
withwith entityentity accountingaccounting analysis,analysis, andand itit isis aa majormajor areaarea ofof concern.concern. 

InIn addition,addition, EnronEnron enteredentered intointo complexcomplex equityequity arrangementsarrangements andand commit­commit­
ments,ments, andand thethe relatedrelated disclosuresdisclosures areare confusing,confusing, toto saysay thethe veryvery least.least. TheThe 
disclosuredisclosure inin thethe 20002000 annualannual reportreport illustratesillustrates thethe difficultiesdifficulties confrontingconfronting anan 
analyst:analyst: 
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The Maintenance ofInvestor Confidence and Access to 
Financing Resources, and Resultant Focus on Earnings per 
Share and Components ofOther Key Financial Ratios 

Footnote 7 of the1998 annual report (p. 55) delineates an important timeframe 
with regard to debt: "Enron has credit facilities with domestic and foreign 
banks which provide for an aggregate of $1.67 billion in long-term committed 
credit and $1.37 billion in short-term committed credit. Expiration dates of 
the committed facilities range from April 1999 to June 2002.... Certain credit 
facilities contain covenants which must be met to borrow funds." From this 
quote, it is clear that continued financial success during this window period is 
essential to the company's ability to maintain external financing. It provides a 
very strong incentive for management to maintain the ratios stipulated in the 
debt covenants. 

In the 2000 annual report, in the MD&A (p. 27), management confirms this 
risk factor: "Enron is party to certain financial contracts which contain provi­
sions for early settlement in the event of a significant market price decline ... 
or if the credit ratings for Enron's secured, senior long-term debt obligations 
fall below investment grade.... Enron's continued investment grade status is 
critical to the success of its wholesale businesses as well as its ability to main­
tain adequate liquidity." According to the 1998-2000 annual reports, Enron 
consistently maintained its credit ratings. But the possibility of an understate­
ment of liabilities is a key consideration, especially when favorable credit rat­
ings are so critical to the firm's success. 

To get a feel for long-term debt obligations, we summarize the disclosures on 
annual maturities oflong-term debt outstanding for 1998 to 2000 (see table 5.2). 

In the 2000 annual report (p. 41), long-term debt due during 2001 rocketed 
to $2.1 billion, from $569 the year before. The sudden escalation in the amount 
of this debt is a major cause for concern, especially when compared to prior 
year long-term debt levels. We will place particular emphasis on this risk area 
when we do ratio analysis in the financial analysis section. 

The Financial Success ofInternational High-Risk, Hard-Asset 
Ventures and Complex Partnership and Equity Ownership 
Structures 

Unconsolidated affiliates provide management with the opportunity to un­
derstate liabilities. This topic is fully investigated in the subsection dealing 
with entity accounting analysis, and it is a major area of concern. 

In addition, Enron entered into complex equity arrangements and commit­
ments, and the related disclosures are confusing, to say the very least. The 
disclosure in the 2000 annual report illustrates the difficulties confronting an 
analyst: 
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TableTable 5.2
5.2
Enron'sEnron's ReportedReported Long-TermLong-Term DebtDebt MaturityMaturity ValuesValues (In(In MillionsMillions ofof U.S.
U.S.
Dollars)
Dollars)

MaturesMatures 19991999 20002000 20012001 20022002 20032003 20042004 20052005 
19981998 ReportReport 541 666666 656656 N/AN/A54\ 413413 182182 N/AN/A 
19991999 ReportReport N/AN/A 670670 569569 432432 494494 493493 N/AN/A 
20002000 ReportReport N/AN/A N/AN/A 2,1122,112 750750 852852 646646 1,5921,592 

InIn 1999,1999, EnronEnron enteredentered intointo aa ShareShare SettlementSettlement AgreementAgreement underunder whichwhich EnronEnron couldcould 
bebe obligated,obligated, underunder certaincertain conditions,conditions, toto deliverdeliver additionaladditional sharesshares ofof commoncommon stockstock oror 
SeriesSeries BB PreferredPreferred StockStock toto WhitewingWhitewing forfor thethe amountamount thatthat thethe marketmarket priceprice ofof thethe 
convertedconverted EnronEnron commoncommon sharesshares isis lessless thanthan $28$28 perper share.share. InIn 2000,2000, EnronEnron increasedincreased 
thethe strikestrike priceprice inin thethe ShareShare SettlementSettlement AgreementAgreement toto $48.55$48.55 perper shareshare inin exchangeexchange forfor 
anan additionaladditional capitalcapital contributioncontribution inin WhitewingWhitewing byby third-partythird-party investorsinvestors ........ AbsentAbsent 
certaincertain defaultsdefaults oror otherother specifiedspecified events,events, EnronEnron hashas thethe optionoption toto acquireacquire thethe third­third­

interests. HEnronpartyparty investors'investors' interests.HEnron doesdoes notnot acquireacquire thethe third-partythird-party investors'investors' interestsinterests 
beforebefore JanuaryJanuary 2003,2003, oror earlierearlier uponupon certaincertain specifiedspecified events,events, WhitewingWhitewing maymay liqui­liqui­
datedate itsits assetsassets andand dissolve.dissolve. (p.(p. 43)43) 

WhitewingWhitewing isis oneone ofof Enron'sEnron's 5050 percentpercent unconsolidatedunconsolidated equityequity affiliates.affiliates. 
ThisThis isis butbut thethe tiptip ofof thethe iceberg.iceberg. AA separateseparate disclosuredisclosure notenote revealsreveals (2000(2000 
annualannual report,report, 42),42), "In"In 20002000 andand 1999,1999, EnronEnron soldsold approximatelyapproximately $632$632 mil­mil­
lionlion andand $192$192 million,million, respectively,respectively, ofof merchantmerchant investmentsinvestments andand otherother assetsassets 
toto Whitewing.Whitewing. EnronEnron recognizedrecognized nono gainsgains oror losseslosses inin connectionconnection withwith thesethese 
transactions."transactions." ThisThis isis butbut oneone ofof manymany veryvery troublingtroubling andand confusingconfusing disclo­disclo­
suressures ofof intermingledintermingled "unconsolidated"unconsolidated affiliate"affiliate" disclosures.disclosures. 

RevenueRevenue AnalysisAnalysis 

RevenueRevenue shouldshould onlyonly bebe recognizedrecognized ifif EnronEnron hashas providedprovided all,all, oror substan­substan­
tiallytially all,all, ofof thethe goodsgoods oror servicesservices toto thethe customercustomer andand ifif thethe customercustomer withwith 
reasonablereasonable confidenceconfidence isis expectedexpected toto paypay cash.cash. 

TheThe FinancialFinancial SuccessSuccess ofofDealerDealer andand TradingTrading ActivitiesActivities 

TheThe 20002000 quarterlyquarterly resultsresults showshow increasingincreasing andand unprecedentedunprecedented levelslevels ofof rev­rev­
enueenue forfor eacheach quarter.quarter. ForFor example,example, revenuesrevenues forfor thethe thirdthird quarterquarter skyrocketedskyrocketed 
fromfrom $16.9$16.9 billionbillion forfor thethe precedingpreceding quarterquarter toto $30$30 billion,billion, aa 7777 percentpercent increase.increase. 
TheThe fourthfourth quarterquarter showsshows revenuesrevenues ofof $40.8$40.8 billion.billion. AA partialpartial explanationexplanation isis 
thatthat unrealizedunrealized gainsgains resultingresulting fromfrom "Assets"Assets fromfrom Price-Risk-ManagementPrice-Risk-Management 
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The Financial Success ofDealer and Trading Activities 

If the broadband business segment proves to be unsuccessful, it could result 
in a write-off of a portion, or all, of the broadband assets of $1,313 million. 
The future profitability of this new business area, far removed from Enron's 
core area of expertise, is uncertain and risky, but we do not know enough to 
make any adjustments to the numbers. This possibility was discussed under 
the asset analysis. We also discussed unrealized losses resulting from trading 
in derivatives under asset analysis. 

The Maintenance ofInvestor Confidence and Access to 
Financing Resources, and Resultant Focus on Earnings per 
Share and Components of Other Key Financial Ratios 

Enron's focus on earnings per share leads us to consider the possible under­
statement of expenses, rather than overstatement. Specifically, we consider 
whether any reported assets should be expensed (e.g., goodwill and other in­
tangibles) and whether there are expenses that have been completely omitted 
(e.g., stock-option remuneration). We also look for large and unexpected asset 
write-offs, which may indicate management reluctance to incorporate chang­
ing business conditions into accounting estimates, especially if unfavorable to 
earnings per share (Palepu et al. 2000, 3-12). 

First, we consider "Goodwill" and "Other" assets (which are disclosed just 
below the goodwill line item). These are reported as follows. For Goodwill: 
1996, $0.87 billion; 1997 and 1998, $1.9 billion; 1999, $2.8 billion; 2000, 
$3.6 billion. For Other: 1996, $1.6 billion; 1997, $3.7 billion; 1998, $4.4 bil­
lion; 1999, $4.7 billion; 2000, $5.5 billion. These assets have increased pro­
gressively and form a substantial portion of total assets, but we have no way of 
estimating possible overstatements or impairments. It is unusual to see assets 
in the billions classified as "Other." We would like to see more disclosure on 
the nature of these assets. 

Next, we consider employee stock option expenses. Companies are not re­
quired to include employee stock-option expenses in net-income calculations, 
even though the expense can be material. This expense should appear on the 
income statement, but the Financial Accounting Standards Board bent to in­
tense corporate lobbying and political pressure and in 1995 released FASB 
Statement 123, which compromised by requesting that the expense be recorded 
but allowing it to be disclosed in the footnotes if the company wished, effec­
tively allowing for overstatement of net income and earnings per share. We 
are not surprised that Enron chose the footnote-disclosure route. Fortunately, 
FASB Statement 128 requires disclosure of diluted earnings per share, which 
includes the effects of unexercised options. Therefore, the reported impact of 
unexercised stock options (an unrecorded expense) can be estimated by exam­
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Activities"Activities" werewere includedincluded inin "Other"Other Revenues"Revenues" onon thethe incomeincome statements,statements, anan 
issueissue addressedaddressed asas partpart ofof assetasset analysis.analysis. TheThe cash-flowcash-flow statementsstatements alsoalso showshow 
thatthat merchantmerchant assetsassets andand investmentsinvestments generatedgenerated unrealizedunrealized gains.gains. FromFrom aa rev­rev­
enue-recognitionenue-recognition perspective,perspective, thethe issueissue revolvesrevolves aroundaround thethe abilityability toto eventu­eventu­
allyally collectcollect thethe cashcash relatedrelated toto unrealizedunrealized gains,gains, whichwhich managementmanagement recordedrecorded 
asas revenue.revenue. WeWe choosechoose toto excludeexclude thesethese gainsgains fromfrom revenuesrevenues forfor purposespurposes ofof 
financialfinancial analysis.analysis. 

TheThe MaintenanceMaintenance ofofInvestorInvestor ConfidenceConfidence andandAccessAccess toto 
FinancingFinancing Resources,Resources, andand ResultantResultant FocusFocus onon EarningsEarnings perper 
ShareShare andand ComponentsComponents ofofOtherOther KeyKey FinancialFinancial RatiosRatios 

ManagementManagement includedincluded revenuesrevenues fromfrom unconsolidatedunconsolidated equityequity affiliatesaffiliates (re­(re­
latedlated parties)parties) ofof $150$150 millionmillion inin 2000,2000, $674$674 millionmillion inin 1999,1999, $563$563 millionmillion inin 
1998,1998, andand $219$219 millionmillion inin 1997.1997. WeWe believebelieve thatthat thesethese transactionstransactions shouldshould bebe 
eliminatedeliminated onon consolidation,consolidation, andand wewe willwill dealdeal withwith thisthis issueissue underunder entityentity ac­ac­
countingcounting analysis.analysis. However,However, wewe findfind anan obviousobvious contradictioncontradiction andand aa veryvery strongstrong 
warningwarning signalsignal inin wordingwording thatthat EnronEnron usesuses inin anan explanatoryexplanatory small-printsmall-print foot­foot­
notenote toto itsits reportingreporting onon "Unaffiliated"Unaffiliated Revenues"Revenues" amounts:amounts: "Unaffiliated"Unaffiliated rev­rev­
enuesenues includeinclude salessales toto unconsolidatedunconsolidated equityequity affiliates"affiliates" (2000(2000 annualannual report,report, 
51).51). Enron'sEnron's so-calledso-called unaffiliatedunaffiliated revenues,revenues, whichwhich havehave shownshown aa rampantrampant 
increase,increase, includeinclude non-arm'snon-arm's lengthlength salessales toto affiliates.affiliates. ExamplesExamples ofof percentagepercentage 
holdingsholdings inin thesethese affiliatesaffiliates areare AzurixAzurix Corp.,Corp., CitrusCitrus Corp.,Corp., DabholDabhol Power,Power, andand 

Teesside-lOOJEDJEDI-allI-all 5050 percent;percent; JacareJacare Electrical-51Electrical-51 percent;percent; EnronEnron Teesside-IOO 
percentpercent (disclosed(disclosed inin thethe 20002000 annualannual report,report, 56).56). 

TheThe FinancialFinancial SuccessSuccess ofofInternationalInternational High-Risk,High-Risk, Hard-AssetHard-Asset 
VenturesVentures andand ComplexComplex PartnershipPartnership andand EquityEquity OwnershipOwnership 
StructuresStructures 

ByBy consolidatingconsolidating unconsolidatedunconsolidated equityequity affiliatesaffiliates (see(see EntityEntity AccountingAccounting 
Analysis),Analysis), wewe maymay bebe ableable toto partiallypartially undoundo revenuerevenue distortionsdistortions withwith regardregard toto 
thisthis riskrisk area.area. 

ExpenseExpense AnalysisAnalysis 

ReportingReporting challengeschallenges relatedrelated toto expensesexpenses arisearise whenwhen resourcesresources provideprovide ben­ben­
efitsefits overover multiplemultiple accountingaccounting periodsperiods (e.g.,(e.g., goodwill),goodwill), thethe timingtiming andand amountamount 
ofof futurefuture paymentspayments areare uncertainuncertain (e.g.,(e.g., pensionpension benefits);benefits); itit isis difficultdifficult toto deter­deter­
minemine aa valuevalue forfor resourcesresources consumedconsumed (e.g.,(e.g., stockstock optionoption compensation)compensation) andand thethe 
declinedecline inin valuevalue ofof unusedunused resourcesresources (e.g.,(e.g., assetasset impairmentsimpairments andand changeschanges inin thethe 
valuevalue ofof financialfinancial instruments).instruments). Typically,Typically, wewe appealappeal toto thethe matchingmatching andand con­con­
servatismservatism principlesprinciples toto arrivearrive atat aa fairfair valuevalue (Palepu(Palepu etet al.al. 2000,2000, 7-17-1 toto 7-16).7-16). 
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Activities" were included in "Other Revenues" on the income statements, a
issue addressed as part of asset analysis. The cash-flow statements also 
that merchant assets and investments generated unrealized gains. From a rev
enue-recognition perspective, the issue revolves around the ability to eventu
ally collect the cash related to unrealized gains, which management recorde
as revenue. We choose to exclude these gains from revenues for purposes o
financial analysis. 

The Maintenance of Investor Confidence and Access to 
Financing Resources, and Resultant Focus on Earnings per 
Share and Components ofOther Key Financial Ratios 

Management included revenues from unconsolidated equity affiliates (re­
lated parties) of $150 million in 2000, $674 million in 1999, $563 million 
1998, and $219 million in 1997. We believe that these transactions should b
eliminated on consolidation, and we will deal with this issue under entity ac­
counting analysis. However, we find an obvious contradiction and a very strong
warning signal in wording that Enron uses in an explanatory small-print foot­
note to its reporting on "Unaffiliated Revenues" amounts: "Unaffiliated rev­
enues include sales to unconsolidated equity affiliates" (2000 annual report
51). Enron's so-called unaffiliated revenues, which have shown a rampan
increase, include non-arm's length sales to affiliates. Examples of percentage
holdings in these affiliates are Azurix Corp., Citrus Corp., Dabhol Power, and
JEDI-all 50 percent; Jacare Electrical-51 percent; Enron Teesside-lOO
percent (disclosed in the 2000 annual report, 56). 

The Financial Success ofInternational High-Risk, Hard-Asset 
Ventures and Complex Partnership and Equity Ownership 
Structures 

By consolidating unconsolidated equity affiliates (see Entity Accounting
Analysis), we may be able to partially undo revenue distortions with regard to
this risk area. 

Expense Analysis 

Reporting challenges related to expenses arise when resources provide ben­
efits over multiple accounting periods (e.g., goodwill), the timing and amount
of future payments are uncertain (e.g., pension benefits); it is difficult to deter­
mine a value for resources consumed (e.g., stock option compensation) and the
decline in value of unused resources (e.g., asset impairments and changes in the
value of financial instruments). Typically, we appeal to the matching and con­
servatism principles to arrive at a fair value (Palepu et al. 2000, 7-1 to 7-16). 
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TheThe FinancialFinancial SuccessSuccess ofofDealerDealer andand TradingTrading ActivitiesActivities 
show 

IfIf thethe broadbandbroadband businessbusiness segmentsegment provesproves toto bebe unsuccessful,unsuccessful, itit couldcould resultresult 
inin aa write-offwrite-off ofof aa portion,portion, oror all,all, ofof thethe broadbandbroadband assetsassets ofof $1,313$1,313 million.million. 
TheThe futurefuture profitabilityprofitability ofof thisthis newnew businessbusiness area,area, farfar removedremoved fromfrom Enron'sEnron's 
corecore areaarea ofof expertise,expertise, isis uncertainuncertain andand risky,risky, butbut wewe dodo notnot knowknow enoughenough toto 
makemake anyany adjustmentsadjustments toto thethe numbers.numbers. ThisThis possibilitypossibility waswas discusseddiscussed underunder 
thethe assetasset analysis.analysis. WeWe alsoalso discusseddiscussed unrealizedunrealized losseslosses resultingresulting fromfrom tradingtrading 
inin derivativesderivatives underunder assetasset analysis.analysis. 

TheThe MaintenanceMaintenance ofof InvestorInvestor ConfidenceConfidence andand AccessAccess toto 
FinancingFinancing Resources,Resources, andand ResultantResultant FocusFocus onon EarningsEarnings perper 
ShareShare andand ComponentsComponents ofof OtherOther KeyKey FinancialFinancial RatiosRatios 

in 
Enron'sEnron's focusfocus onon earningsearnings perper shareshare leadsleads usus toto considerconsider thethe possiblepossible under­under­

statementstatement ofof expenses,expenses, ratherrather thanthan overstatement.overstatement. Specifically,Specifically, wewe considerconsider 
whetherwhether anyany reportedreported assetsassets shouldshould bebe expensedexpensed (e.g.,(e.g., goodwillgoodwill andand otherother in­in­
tangibles)tangibles) andand whetherwhether therethere areare expensesexpenses thatthat havehave beenbeen completelycompletely omittedomitted 
(e.g.,(e.g., stock-optionstock-option remuneration).remuneration). WeWe alsoalso looklook forfor largelarge andand unexpectedunexpected assetasset 
write-offs,write-offs, whichwhich maymay indicateindicate managementmanagement reluctancereluctance toto incorporateincorporate chang­chang­
inging businessbusiness conditionsconditions intointo accountingaccounting estimates,estimates, especiallyespecially ifif unfavorableunfavorable toto 
earningsearnings perper shareshare (Palepu(Palepu etet al.al. 2000,2000, 3-12).3-12). 

First,First, wewe considerconsider "Goodwill""Goodwill" andand "Other""Other" assetsassets (which(which areare discloseddisclosed justjust 
belowbelow thethe goodwillgoodwill lineline item).item). TheseThese areare reportedreported asas follows.follows. ForFor Goodwill:Goodwill: 
1996,1996, $0.87$0.87 billion;billion; 19971997 andand 1998,1998, $1.9$1.9 billion;billion; 1999,1999, $2.8$2.8 billion;billion; 2000,2000, 
$3.6$3.6 billion.billion. ForFor Other:Other: 1996,1996, $1.6$1.6 billion;billion; 1997,1997, $3.7$3.7 billion;billion; 1998,1998, $4.4$4.4 bil­bil­
lion;lion; 1999,1999, $4.7$4.7 billion;billion; 2000,2000, $5.5$5.5 billion.billion. TheseThese assetsassets havehave increasedincreased pro­pro­
gressivelygressively andand formform aa substantialsubstantial portionportion ofof totaltotal assets,assets, butbut wewe havehave nono wayway ofof 
estimatingestimating possiblepossible overstatementsoverstatements oror impairments.impairments. ItIt isis unusualunusual toto seesee assetsassets 
inin thethe billionsbillions classifiedclassified asas "Other.""Other." WeWe wouldwould likelike toto seesee moremore disclosuredisclosure onon 
thethe naturenature ofof thesethese assets.assets. 

Next,Next, wewe considerconsider employeeemployee stockstock optionoption expenses.expenses. CompaniesCompanies areare notnot re­re­
quiredquired toto includeinclude employeeemployee stock-optionstock-option expensesexpenses inin net-incomenet-income calculations,calculations, 
eveneven thoughthough thethe expenseexpense cancan bebe material.material. ThisThis expenseexpense shouldshould appearappear onon thethe 
incomeincome statement,statement, butbut thethe FinancialFinancial AccountingAccounting StandardsStandards BoardBoard bentbent toto in­in­
tensetense corporatecorporate lobbyinglobbying andand politicalpolitical pressurepressure andand inin 19951995 releasedreleased FASBFASB 
StatementStatement 123,123, whichwhich compromisedcompromised byby requestingrequesting thatthat thethe expenseexpense bebe recordedrecorded 
butbut allowingallowing itit toto bebe discloseddisclosed inin thethe footnotesfootnotes ifif thethe companycompany wished,wished, effec­effec­
tivelytively allowingallowing forfor overstatementoverstatement ofof netnet incomeincome andand earningsearnings perper share.share. WeWe 
areare notnot surprisedsurprised thatthat EnronEnron chosechose thethe footnote-disclosurefootnote-disclosure route.route. Fortunately,Fortunately, 
FASBFASB StatementStatement 128128 requiresrequires disclosuredisclosure ofof diluteddiluted earningsearnings perper share,share, whichwhich 
includesincludes thethe effectseffects ofof unexercisedunexercised options.options. Therefore,Therefore, thethe reportedreported impactimpact ofof 

exam­unexercisedunexercised stockstock optionsoptions (an(an unrecordedunrecorded expense)expense) cancan bebe estimatedestimated byby exam­
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Enron purposely structured its holdings to be exactly at 50 percent mainly to 
avoid consolidation? Some of the unconsolidated affiliates even exceed the 
rule-of-thumb limit of 50 percent. For example, on December 31, 1998, Enron's 
ownership interest in one unconsolidated affiliate, Enron Teesside Operations, 
was 100 percent. Enron's position is that it intended to ultimately hold a vot­
ing interest of no more than 50 percent and therefore chooses not to consoli­
date. We beg to differ. 

Asset-heavy Dabhol Power Company and Wessex Water are included in 
these unconsolidated affiliates, along with the JEDI and JEDI II and other 
partnerships. Enron states in the footnote that it has also entered into various 
arms-length administrative service, management, construction, supply, and 
operating agreements with these affiliates, but based on the percentage hold­
ings, we discount this assertion. The footnotes include a summary balance 
sheet of all the affiliates combined. In our adjustments, we will use the infor­
mation obtained from the financial statements and shown in table 5.3 to con­
solidate these affiliates. This affects not only asset balances but also liabilities, 
shareholders' equity, and net income for 1996 to 2000. 

Table 5.3� 
Financial Information for Unconsolidated Equity Affiliates (In Millions of U.S.� 
Dollars)� 

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 
Investment in Affiliates 5,294 5,036 4,433 2,656 1,701-_.__._.__._.,-.._-.-
Eguity in Earnings (Losses) 87 309 97 216 215 

- .-- ..-._._._-_ ..,.._--­ --_._------------­

Balance Sheet 
Current Assets 5,884' 3,168' 2,309' 3,611 2,587 
Property, Plant & Equipment (net) 14,786 14,356 12,640 8,851 8,064 
Other Non-Current Assets 13,485 9,459 7,176 1,089 902 
Current Liabilities 4,739b 4,401 b 3,501 b 1,861 h 2,381 
Long-Term Debt 9,717h 8,486b 7,621 h 5,694h 5,230 
Other Non-Current Liabilities 6,148 2,402 2,016 1,295 1,139 
Owners' Equity 13,551 11,694 8,987 4,701 2,803 

Income Statement C 

Operating Revenues 15,903 11,568 8,508 11,183 8,258 
Operating Expenses 14,710 9,449 7,244 10,246 7,335 
Net Income 586 1,857 142 336 226 

Distributions Paid to Enron 137 482 87 118 68 

Source: Notes to the Financial Statements in 1998, 1999, and 2000 annual reports; 1997 Form� 
1O-K.� 

'Includes Receivables from Enron: 2000, $410 million; 1999, $327 million; 1998, $196 million.� 

bIncludes Payables to Enron: 2000, $302 million; 1999, $84 million; 1998, $296 million;� 
1997, $569 million.� 

'Enron recognized revenues from transactions with unconsolidated equity affiliates: 2000,� 
$510 million; 1999, $674 million; 1998, $563 million; 1997, $219 million.� 
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iningining thethe mandatorymandatory reconciliationreconciliation betweenbetween basicbasic andand diluteddiluted earningsearnings perper 
share.share. TheThe impactimpactofofincludingincluding thisthis stockstockoptionoptionexpenseexpense isis aadecreasedecrease inin after­after­
taxtax netnet incomeincome asas follows:follows: 2000,2000, $93$93 million;million; 1999,1999, $66$66 million;million; 1998,1998, $29$29 
million;million; 1997,1997, $39$39 million;million; andand 1996,1996, $22$22 million.million. 

TheThe FinancialFinancial SuccessSuccess ofofInternationalInternational High-Risk,High-Risk, Hard-AssetHard-Asset 
VenturesVentures andand ComplexComplex PartnershipPartnership andand EquityEquity OwnershipOwnership 
StructuresStructures 

TheThe MD&AMD&A (2000(2000 annualannual report,report, 21)21) mentionsmentions aa $326$326 millionmillion impairmentimpairment 
chargecharge forfor Azurix,Azurix, aa waterwater andand wastewaterwastewater "unconsolidated"unconsolidated equityequity affiliate"affiliate" 
andand oneone ofofEnron'sEnron's newnew ventures.ventures. ThisThis impairmentimpairment isis notnot separatelyseparately discloseddisclosed 
onon thethe faceface ofof thethe incomeincome statement.statement. WeWe cannotcannot determinedetermine whetherwhether furtherfurther 
impairmentsimpairments areare likely.likely. 

ByBy consolidatingconsolidating unconsolidatedunconsolidated equityequity affiliatesaffiliates (see(see Entity-AccountingEntity-Accounting 
Analysis),Analysis), wewe maymay bebe ableable toto partiallypartially undoundo distortionsdistortions withwith regardregard toto thisthis 
expenseexpense riskrisk area.area. 

AnotherAnother problemproblem wewe experiencedexperienced isis thethe lacklack ofofdisclosuredisclosure onon foreignforeign assets.assets. 
WeWe werewere unableunable toto determinedetermine whetherwhether thethe reportedreported valuevalue ofof foreignforeign assetsassets 
couldcould bebe impaired.impaired. 

Entity-AccountingEntity-AccountingAnalysisAnalysis 

Entity-accountingEntity-accounting analysisanalysis isis crucialcrucial inin determiningdetermining reportingreporting boundariesboundaries 
forfor financialfinancial analysisanalysis purposes.purposes. TheThe focusfocus isis onon resourcesresources thatthat anan entityentity con­con­
trolstrols inin evaluatingevaluating performanceperformanceratherrather thanthan onon legallegal definitionsdefinitions ofofcontrol.control. TheThe 
accountingaccounting challengechallenge isis whetherwhether toto aggregateaggregate thethe financialfinancial performanceperformance ofof 
twotwo oror moremore reportingreporting entitiesentities (see(see PalepuPalepu etet al.al. 2000,2000, 8-1).8-1). EnronEnron hashas aa com­com­
plexplex andand confusingconfusing myriadmyriad ofofrelatedrelated unconsolidatedunconsolidated affiliatesaffiliates andand relatedrelated par­par­
ties.ties. AA convolutionconvolution ofof financingfinancing andand otherother arrangements,arrangements, combinedcombined withwith 
bewilderingbewildering disclosures,disclosures, makemake thisthis aa difficultdifficult andand troublingtroubling areaarea toto examine.examine. 

TheThe FinancialFinancial SuccessSuccess ofofInternationalInternational High-Risk,High-Risk, Hard-AssetHard-Asset 
VenturesVentures andand ComplexComplex PartnershipPartnership andand EquityEquity OwnershipOwnership 
StructuresStructures 

42--43)FootnoteFootnote 99 (2000(2000 annualannual report,report, 42-43) makesmakes warningwarning bellsbells gogo off.off. Enron'sEnron's 
unconsolidatedunconsolidated equityequity affiliatesaffiliates areare mostlymostly 5050 percentpercent holdings.holdings. AreAre wewe toto 
believebelieve thatthat aa companycompany ofof Enron'sEnron's size,size, stature,stature, andand aggressivenessaggressiveness doesdoes notnot 
exerciseexercise controlcontrol overover thesethese affiliates?affiliates? ThisThis isis especiallyespecially pertinentpertinent whenwhen wewe 
considerconsider thethe powerpower thatthat EnronEnron managementmanagement appearsappears toto exertexert overover financialfinancial 
analysts.analysts. InIn addition,addition, EnronEnron guaranteesguarantees thethe performance,performance, liabilities,liabilities, andand leaselease 
obligationsobligations ofof somesome thesethese affiliatesaffiliates toto thethe tunetune ofof overover $2.5$2.5 billion.billion. IsIs thisthis thethe 
actionaction ofof aa thirdthird partyparty withoutwithout controlcontrol overover thesethese entities?entities? IsIs itit possiblepossible thatthat 
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ining the mandatory reconciliation between basic and diluted earnings pe
share. The impact of including this stock option expense is a decrease in after­
tax net income as follows: 2000, $93 million; 1999, $66 million; 1998, $29
million; 1997, $39 million; and 1996, $22 million. 

The Financial Success ofInternational High-Risk, Hard-Asset 
Ventures and Complex Partnership and Equity Ownership 
Structures 

The MD&A (2000 annual report, 21) mentions a $326 million impairment
charge for Azurix, a water and wastewater "unconsolidated equity affiliate"
and one of Enron's new ventures. This impairment is not separately disclosed
on the face of the income statement. We cannot determine whether further
impairments are likely. 

By consolidating unconsolidated equity affiliates (see Entity-Accounting
Analysis), we may be able to partially undo distortions with regard to this
expense risk area. 

Another problem we experienced is the lack of disclosure on foreign assets.
We were unable to determine whether the reported value of foreign assets
could be impaired. 

Entity-Accounting Analysis 

Entity-accounting analysis is crucial in determining reporting boundaries
for financial analysis purposes. The focus is on resources that an entity con­
trols in evaluating performance rather than on legal definitions of control. The
accounting challenge is whether to aggregate the financial performance o
two or more reporting entities (see Palepu et al. 2000, 8-1). Enron has a com­
plex and confusing myriad of related unconsolidated affiliates and related par­
ties. A convolution of financing and other arrangements, combined with
bewildering disclosures, make this a difficult and troubling area to examine. 

The Financial Success ofInternational High-Risk, Hard-Asset 
Ventures and Complex Partnership and Equity Ownership 
Structures 

Footnote 9 (2000 annual report, 42--43) makes warning bells go off. Enron's
unconsolidated equity affiliates are mostly 50 percent holdings. Are we to
believe that a company of Enron's size, stature, and aggressiveness does not
exercise control over these affiliates? This is especially pertinent when we
consider the power that Enron management appears to exert over financial
analysts. In addition, Enron guarantees the performance, liabilities, and lease
obligations of some these affiliates to the tune of over $2.5 billion. Is this the
action of a third party without control over these entities? Is it possible that

FinancialFinancial AnalystsAnalysts andand EnronEnron 9393 

EnronEnron purposelypurposely structuredstructured itsits holdingsholdings toto bebe exactlyexactly atat 5050 percentpercent mainlymainly toto 
avoidavoid consolidation?consolidation? SomeSome ofof thethe unconsolidatedunconsolidated affiliatesaffiliates eveneven exceedexceed thethe 
rule-of-thumbrule-of-thumb limitlimit ofof 5050 percent.percent. ForFor example,example, onon DecemberDecember 31,31, 1998,1998, Enron'sEnron's 
ownershipownership interestinterest inin oneone unconsolidatedunconsolidated affiliate,affiliate, EnronEnron TeessideTeesside Operations,Operations, 
waswas 100100 percent.percent. Enron'sEnron's positionposition isis thatthat itit intendedintended toto ultimatelyultimately holdhold aa vot­vot­
inging interestinterest ofof nono moremore thanthan 5050 percentpercent andand thereforetherefore chooseschooses notnot toto consoli­consoli­
date.date. WeWe begbeg toto differ.differ. 

Asset-heavyAsset-heavy DabholDabhol PowerPower CompanyCompany andand WessexWessex WaterWater areare includedincluded inin 
thesethese unconsolidatedunconsolidated affiliates,affiliates, alongalong withwith thethe JEDIJEDI andand JEDIJEDI IIII andand otherother 
partnerships.partnerships. EnronEnron statesstates inin thethe footnotefootnote thatthat itit hashas alsoalso enteredentered intointo variousvarious 
arms-lengtharms-length administrativeadministrative service,service, management,management, construction,construction, supply,supply, andand 
operatingoperating agreementsagreements withwith thesethese affiliates,affiliates, butbut basedbased onon thethe percentagepercentage hold­hold­
ings,ings, wewe discountdiscount thisthis assertion.assertion. TheThe footnotesfootnotes includeinclude aa summarysummary balancebalance 
sheetsheet ofof allall thethe affiliatesaffiliates combined.combined. InIn ourour adjustments,adjustments, wewe willwill useuse thethe infor­infor­
mationmation obtainedobtained fromfrom thethe financialfinancial statementsstatements andand shownshown inin tabletable 5.35.3 toto con­con­
solidatesolidate thesethese affiliates.affiliates. ThisThis affectsaffects notnot onlyonly assetasset balancesbalances butbut alsoalso liabilities,liabilities, 
shareholders'shareholders' equity,equity, andand netnet incomeincome forfor 19961996 toto 2000.2000. 

5.3�TableTable 5.3 
U.S.�FinancialFinancial InformationInformation forfor UnconsolidatedUnconsolidated EquityEquity AffiliatesAffiliates (In(In MillionsMillions ofof U.S. 

Dollars)�Dollars) 

--.,,--_.. _._._,. __..._.. 20002000 
.-, ...................__.......,_. 19991999 19981998-._-_.__........--_.._._ .. - 19971997 19961996 

InvestmentInvestment inin AffiliatesAffiliates 5,2945,294 5,0365,036 4,4334,433 2,6562,656 -_.__._.__._.,-.._-.­1,7011,701 
._.__._.__ ._. '._'0­

EguityEguity inin EarningsEarnings (Losses)(Losses) 
BalanceBalance SheetSheet 

- .. .., _--­.--.-- .. -._._._-_-._._._-_ .., ...._--­ 8787 309309 9797 
--_._------------­

216216 215215--_._--_ .. _------­

CurrentCurrent AssetsAssets 5,884'5,884" 3,168'3,168" 2,309'2,309" 3,6113,6l1 2,5872,587 
Property,Property, PlantPlant && EquipmentEquipment (net)(net) 14,78614,786 14,35614,356 12,64012,640 8,8518,851 8,0648,064 
OtherOther Non-CurrentNon-Current AssetsAssets 13,48513,485 9,4599,459 7,1767,176 1,0891,089 902902 
CurrentCurrent LiabilitiesLiabilities 4,7394,739 bb 4,4014,401 bb 3,5013,501 bb 1,8611,861 hh 2,3812,381 
Long-TermLong-Term DebtDebt h9,7179,717b 8,4868,486 bb 

h7,6217,621 b 
h5,6945,694b 5,2305,230 

OtherOther Non-CurrentNon-Current LiabilitiesLiabilities 6,1486,148 2,4022,402 2,0162,016 1,2951,295 1,1391,139 
Owners'Owners' EquityEquity 13,55113,551 11,69411,694 8,9878,987 4,7014,701 2,8032,803 

IncomeIncome StatementStatement CC 

OperatingOperating RevenuesRevenues 15,90315,903 11,56811,568 8,5088,508 11,18311,183 8,2588,258 
OperatingOperating ExpensesExpenses 14,71014,710 9,4499,449 7,2447,244 10,24610,246 7,3357,335 
NetNet IncomeIncome 586586 1,8571,857 142142 336336 226226 

Distributions~stributionsPaidPaid toto EnronEnron 137137 482482 8787 118118 6868 

Form�Source:Source: NotesNotes toto thethe FinancialFinancial StatementsStatements inin 1998,1998, 1999,1999, andand 20002000 annualannual reports;reports; 19971997 Form 
1O-K.�1O-K. 

million.�'Includes'Includes ReceivablesReceivables fromfrom Enron:Enron: 2000,2000, $410$410 million;million; 1999,1999, $327$327 million;million; 1998,1998, $196$196 million. 

million;�bIncludesbIncludes PayablesPayables toto Enron:Enron: 2000,2000, $302$302 million;million; 1999,1999, $84$84 million;million; 1998,1998, $296$296 million; 
million.�1997,1997, $569$569 million. 

'Enron 2000,�'Enron recognizedrecognized revenuesrevenues fromfrom transactionstransactions withwith unconsolidatedunconsolidated equityequity affiliates:affiliates: 2000, 
million.�$510$510 million;million; 1999,1999, $674$674 million;million; 1998,1998, $563$563 million;million; 1997,1997, $219$219 million. 
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Table 5.4 
Enron's Relationships between Income, Cash Flows, and Taxes (US. Dollar 
Amounts in Millions) 

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 
1. Net Income $584 $105* $703 $893 $979 

Cash Flow from Operations $884 $211 $1,640 $1,228 $4,779 
% Net Income to Cash Flow 69% 50% 43% 73% 15% 

2. Income before Income Taxes $855 $15* $878 $1,128 $1,413 
Tax Payable on Income 64 84 88 83 227 
% Tax Payable 7.5'10 560% 10.1% 7.4% 16.1°/', 
% Deferred Tax 24.2% (1160%) 9.9% 1.8% 14.6% 
% Effective Tax 31.7% (600%) 20% 9.2% 30.7% 

*Includes unusual nonrecurring contract restructuring charge of $675 million. 

We also scrutinize the 1998 to 2000 annual reports for evidence of large 
fourth quarter fluctuations, as annual reports are audited, whereas quarterly 
reports are (normally) merely reviewed (Palepu et al. 2000, 3-12). Manage­
ment could make adjustments in the fourth quarter to satisfy the external audi­
tors; this would heighten our concern about the credibility of the numbers. We 
do notice an anomaly during the fourth quarter of 2000. Revenues increased 
by 36 percent over the third quarter, and yet net income decreased by 79 per­
cent. We now feel even more comfortable with our decision to make adjust­
ments to revenues. 

Undoing Perceived Accounting Distortions 

Before proceeding to financial analysis, we will undo accounting distor­
tions as we believe warranted, based on our accounting analysis interpreta­
tions. We had additional concerns, but we do not have enough information to 
quantify and adjust for them. The adjustments we decided on for financial 
analysis purposes are as follows: 

Possible unrealized gains from price risk management activities (included in "Other 
Revenues" on the income statement): Restate revenues (and net income before tax) 
for 1999 and 2000, and reduce Retained Earnings. Income before tax decreases 
materially as follows: 2000, $763 million; and 1999, $395 million. "Assets from 
price risk management activities" decreases as well, to complete the double entry. 
We also adjust for deferred taxation at the statutory federal income tax rate. 

Possible unrealized gains on merchant assets and investments: Reduce revenues (and 
net income before tax) and "Other Assets" as follows: 2000, $1,295 million; 1999, 
$827 million; 1998, $721 million; 1997, $308 million; and 1996, $192 million. We 
also adjust for deferred taxation at the statutory federal income tax rate. 
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AnotherAnother footnotefootnote ofof interest,interest, "Related"Related PartyParty Transactions,"Transactions," appearsappears forfor thethe 
firstfirst timetime inin thethe 19991999 annualannual reportreport (p.(p. 59).59). AA majormajor concernconcern isis thatthat thesethese 
transactionstransactions maymay lacklack thethe objectivityobjectivity ofofthethe freefree marketmarket andand consequentlyconsequently havehave 
thethe potentialpotential toto materiallymaterially distortdistort financialfinancial information.information. ExtractsExtracts fromfrom Enron'sEnron's 
footnotefootnote include:include: "In"In JuneJune 1999,1999, EnronEnron enteredentered intointo aa seriesseries ofof transactionstransactions 
involvinginvolving aa thirdthird partyparty andand LJMLJM CaymanCayman........ AA seniorsenior officerofficer ofof EnronEnron isis thethe 
managingmanaging membermember ofof LJM'sLJM's generalgeneral partner";partner"; "An"An officerofficer ofof EnronEnron hashas in­in­
vestedvested inin thethe limitedlimited partnerpartner ofof JEDIJEDI andand fromfrom timetime toto timetime actsacts asas agentagent onon 
behalfbehalf ofof thethe limitedlimited partner'spartner's management."management." TheThe thirty-seventhirty-seven lineslines ofof relatedrelated 
partyparty disclosuredisclosure inin 19991999 increaseincrease toto ninetyninety lineslines inin 2000,2000, indicatingindicating increasedincreased 
activityactivity inin thisthis area.area. TheThe proxyproxy statementstatement forfor thethe 20012001 shareholders'shareholders' meetingmeeting 
(available(available aroundaround thethe timetime ofof thethe releaserelease ofof thethe 20002000 annualannual report)report) identifiesidentifies 
thethe seniorsenior officialofficial asas AndrewAndrew Fastow,Fastow, Enron'sEnron's chiefchief financialfinancial officer.officer. TheThe lim­lim­
itedited partnerpartner isis unknown.unknown. TheThe footnotefootnote goesgoes onon toto describedescribe somesome ofof thethe relatedrelated 
partyparty transactionstransactions andand disclosesdiscloses pretaxpretax gainsgains forfor EnronEnron ofof approximatelyapproximately $16$16 
million,million, whichwhich isis notnot material.material. However,However, inin 2000,2000, thethe relatedrelated partyparty footnotefootnote 
moremore thanthan doublesdoubles inin lengthlength (2000(2000 annualannual report,report, 48-49).48-49). ItIt startsstarts asas follows:follows: 
"In"In 20002000 andand 1999,1999, EnronEnron enteredentered intointo transactionstransactions withwith limitedlimited partnershipspartnerships 
(the(the RelatedRelated Party)Party) whosewhose generalgeneral partner'spartner's managingmanaging partnerpartner isis aa seniorsenior offi­offi­
cialcial ofof Enron."Enron." TheThe pretaxpretax effectseffects onon netnet incomeincome fromfrom transactionstransactions withwith thesethese 
partnershipspartnerships appearappear toto bebe inin excessexcess ofof $550$550 million.million. ThisThis isis aa substantialsubstantial por­por­
tiontion ofof Enron'Enron' ss pretaxpretax earningsearnings ofof $1,413.$1,413. ThisThis raisesraises seriousserious questionsquestions aboutabout 
thethe qualityquality ofof earnings.earnings. Ideally,Ideally, ourour consolidationconsolidation adjustmentsadjustments forfor unconsoli­unconsoli­
dateddated affiliatesaffiliates willwill adjustadjust forfor thesethese transactions,transactions, butbut wewe areare notnot givengiven enoughenough 
informationinformation toto bebe completelycompletely confident.confident. 

ConsolidationConsolidation oftheseofthese unconsolidatedunconsolidated affiliatesaffiliates increasesincreases Enron'sEnron's reportedreported 
debtdebt equityequity ratioratio atat DecemberDecember 31,31, 2000,2000, byby almostalmost 4040 percent,percent, whichwhich couldcould 
resultresult inin violationviolation ofof debtdebt covenants.covenants. ThisThis ratioratio willwill bebe discusseddiscussed inin moremore de­de­
tailtail whenwhen wewe performperform thethe detaileddetailed financialfinancial analysis.analysis. 

AdditionalAdditional RedRed flagsflags 

InIn additionaddition toto thethe concernsconcerns alreadyalready raised,raised, wewe reviewreview thethe relationshipsrelationships be­be­
tweentween Enron'sEnron's reportedreported netnet incomeincome andand cashcash flowflow fromfrom operatingoperating activitiesactivities 
andand itsits reportedreported netnet incomeincome beforebefore taxestaxes andand taxabletaxable income.income. 

TableTable 5.45.4 clearlyclearly showsshows largelarge andand inconsistentinconsistent fluctuationsfluctuations betweenbetween netnet in­in­
comecome andand operatingoperating cashcash flowflow (especially(especially inin 2000),2000), asas wellwell asas enormousenormous dif­dif­
ferencesferences inin reportedreported netnet incomeincome (before(before taxes)taxes) andand taxabletaxable income.income. ThisThis isis anan 
indicationindication thatthat qualityquality ofof earningsearnings maymay notnot bebe high.high. InIn particular,particular, thethe largelarge gapgap 
betweenbetween 20002000 netnet incomeincome ofof $979$979 millionmillion andand cashcash generatedgenerated byby operationsoperations ofof 
$4,779$4,779 requiresrequires moremore explanation.explanation. IsIs itit possiblepossible thatthat cashcash flowflow fromfrom investinginvesting 
activitiesactivities waswas diverteddiverted toto cashcash flowflow fromfrom operatingoperating activities?activities? WeWe havehave alreadyalready 
putput forthforth anan argumentargument forfor thisthis inin regardregard toto noncurrentnoncurrent price-risk-managementprice-risk-management 
activities.activities. 
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Another footnote of interest, "Related Party Transactions," appears for th
first time in the 1999 annual report (p. 59). A major concern is that thes
transactions may lack the objectivity of the free market and consequently hav
the potential to materially distort financial information. Extracts from Enron'
footnote include: "In June 1999, Enron entered into a series of transaction
involving a third party and LJM Cayman.... A senior officer of Enron is th
managing member of LJM's general partner"; "An officer of Enron has in
vested in the limited partner of JEDI and from time to time acts as agent o
behalf of the limited partner's management." The thirty-seven lines of relate
party disclosure in 1999 increase to ninety lines in 2000, indicating increase
activity in this area. The proxy statement for the 2001 shareholders' meetin
(available around the time of the release of the 2000 annual report) identifie
the senior official as Andrew Fastow, Enron's chief financial officer. The lim
ited partner is unknown. The footnote goes on to describe some of the relate
party transactions and discloses pretax gains for Enron of approximately $1
million, which is not material. However, in 2000, the related party footnot
more than doubles in length (2000 annual report, 48-49). It starts as follows
"In 2000 and 1999, Enron entered into transactions with limited partnership
(the Related Party) whose general partner's managing partner is a senior offi
cial of Enron." The pretax effects on net income from transactions with thes
partnerships appear to be in excess of $550 million. This is a substantial por
tion of Enron's pretax earnings of $1,413. This raises serious questions abou
the quality of earnings. Ideally, our consolidation adjustments for unconsoli
dated affiliates will adjust for these transactions, but we are not given enoug
information to be completely confident. 

Consolidation ofthese unconsolidated affiliates increases Enron's reporte
debt equity ratio at December 31, 2000, by almost 40 percent, which coul
result in violation of debt covenants. This ratio will be discussed in more de
tail when we perform the detailed financial analysis. 

Additional Red flags 

In addition to the concerns already raised, we review the relationships be
tween Enron's reported net income and cash flow from operating activitie
and its reported net income before taxes and taxable income. 

Table 5.4 clearly shows large and inconsistent fluctuations between net in
come and operating cash flow (especially in 2000), as well as enormous dif
ferences in reported net income (before taxes) and taxable income. This is a
indication that quality of earnings may not be high. In particular, the large ga
between 2000 net income of $979 million and cash generated by operations o
$4,779 requires more explanation. Is it possible that cash flow from investin
activities was diverted to cash flow from operating activities? We have alread
put forth an argument for this in regard to noncurrent price-risk-managemen
activities. 
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TableTable 5.45.4 
Enron'sEnron's RelationshipsRelationships betweenbetween Income,Income, CashCash Flows,Flows, andand TaxesTaxes (US.(US. DollarDollar 
AmountsAmounts inin Millions)Millions) 

19961996 19971997 19981998 19991999 20002000 
1.1. NetNet IncomeIncome $584$584 $105*$105* $703$703 $893$893 $979$979 

CashCash FlowFlow fromfrom OperationsOperations $884$884 $211$211 $1,640$1,640 $1,228$1,228 $4,779$4,779 
%% NetNet IncomeIncome toto CashCash FlowFlow 69%69% 50%50% 43%43% 73%73% 15%15% 

2.2. IncomeIncome beforebefore IncomeIncome TaxesTaxes $855$855 $15*$15* $878$878 $1,128$1,128 $1,413$1,413 
TaxTax PayablePayable onon IncomeIncome 6464 8484 8888 8383 227227 
%% TaxTax PayablePayable 7.5'107.5'10 560%560% 10.1%10.1% 7.4%7.4% 16.1°/',16.1°/', 
%% DeferredDeferred TaxTax 24.2%24.2% (1160%)(1160%) 9.9%9.9% 1.8%1.8% 14.6%14.6% 
%% EffectiveEffective TaxTax 31.7%31.7% (600%)(600%) 20%20% 9.2%9.2% 30.7%30.7% 

*Includes*Includes unusualunusual nonrecurringnonrecurring contractcontract restructuringrestructuring chargecharge ofof $675$675 million.million. 

WeWe alsoalso scrutinizescrutinize thethe 19981998 toto 20002000 annualannual reportsreports forfor evidenceevidence ofof largelarge 
fourthfourth quarterquarter fluctuations,fluctuations, asas annualannual reportsreports areare audited,audited, whereaswhereas quarterlyquarterly 

al.reportsreports areare (normally)(normally) merelymerely reviewedreviewed (Palepu(Palepu etet a1. 2000,2000, 3-12).3-12). Manage­Manage­
mentment couldcould makemake adjustmentsadjustments inin thethe fourthfourth quarterquarter toto satisfysatisfy thethe externalexternal audi­audi­
tors;tors; thisthis wouldwould heightenheighten ourour concernconcern aboutabout thethe credibilitycredibility ofof thethe numbers.numbers. WeWe 
dodo noticenotice anan anomalyanomaly duringduring thethe fourthfourth quarterquarter ofof 2000.2000. RevenuesRevenues increasedincreased 
byby 3636 percentpercent overover thethe thirdthird quarter,quarter, andand yetyet netnet incomeincome decreaseddecreased byby 7979 per­per­
cent.cent. WeWe nownow feelfeel eveneven moremore comfortablecomfortable withwith ourour decisiondecision toto makemake adjust­adjust­
mentsments toto revenues.revenues. 

UndoingUndoing PerceivedPerceived AccountingAccounting DistortionsDistortions 

BeforeBefore proceedingproceeding toto financialfinancial analysis,analysis, wewe willwill undoundo accountingaccounting distor­distor­
tionstions asas wewe believebelieve warranted,warranted, basedbased onon ourour accountingaccounting analysisanalysis interpreta­interpreta­
tions.tions. WeWe hadhad additionaladditional concerns,concerns, butbut wewe dodo notnot havehave enoughenough informationinformation toto 
quantifyquantify andand adjustadjust forfor them.them. TheThe adjustmentsadjustments wewe decideddecided onon forfor financialfinancial 
analysisanalysis purposespurposes areare asas follows:follows: 

PossiblePossible unrealizedunrealized gainsgains fromfrom priceprice riskrisk managementmanagement activitiesactivities (included(included inin "Other"Other 
Revenues"Revenues" onon thethe incomeincome statement):statement): RestateRestate revenuesrevenues (and(and netnet incomeincome beforebefore tax)tax) 
forfor 19991999 andand 2000,2000, andand reducereduce RetainedRetained Earnings.Earnings. IncomeIncome beforebefore taxtax decreasesdecreases 
materiallymaterially asas follows:follows: 2000,2000, $763$763 million;million; andand 1999,1999, $395$395 million.million. "Assets"Assets fromfrom 
priceprice riskrisk managementmanagement activities"activities" decreasesdecreases asas well,well, toto completecomplete thethe doubledouble entry.entry. 
WeWe alsoalso adjustadjust forfor deferreddeferred taxationtaxation atat thethe statutorystatutory federalfederal incomeincome taxtax rate.rate. 

PossiblePossible unrealizedunrealized gainsgains onon merchantmerchant assetsassets andand investments:investments: ReduceReduce revenuesrevenues (and(and 
netnet incomeincome beforebefore tax)tax) andand "Other"Other Assets"Assets" asas follows:follows: 2000,2000, $1,295$1,295 million;million; 1999,1999, 
$827$827 million;million; 1998,1998, $721$721 million;million; 1997,1997, $308$308 million;million; andand 1996,1996, $192$192 million.million. WeWe 
alsoalso adjustadjust forfor deferreddeferred taxationtaxation atat thethe statutorystatutory federalfederal incomeincome taxtax rate.rate. 
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TableS.S 
Enron Ratio Analysis after Adjustments to Reported Amounts 

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 
Return on Equity 12.2% -3% 3.5% 0.4% -4.9% 
Return on Assets 1.7% -0.5%. 0.5% 0.1% -0.6% 
Financial Leverage 7.2 6.5 6.6 6.6 7.9 
Net Profit Margin 2% -0.4% 0.5% 0.1% -0.4% 
Asset Turnover 0.8 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.6 
Gross Profit Margin 6.5% 4.1% 4.9% 4.1% 0.8% 
Basic EPS 0.86 -0.28 0.29 -0.05 -0.73 
Net PP&E Turnover 1.4 1.9 1.9 2.1 4.4 
Current Ratio 1.1 1.4 0.9 0.9 1.1 
Debt Equity Ratio 5.7 4.5 5.0 4.2 7.2 

tionally generated ROEs of 11 to 13 percent (paIepu et aI. 2000, 9-3). Emon's ROEs 
are: 2000, minus 4.6 percent; 1999,0.4 percent; 1998,3.2 percent; 1997, mi­
nus 2.5 percent; and 1996, 12.2 percent. The return for 1996 is the only one 
that is within the normal range. The subsequent years (1997 to 2000) are well 
below this range, with 2000 being the worst year by far. Problems with overall 
profitability appear to surface as early as 1997. A review of a Reed Wasden 
Research publication (Wasden et a1. 2001,2-8) shows that Emon's ROEs (even 
the preadjustment ROE) fall far short of those of its comparable peers-AES, 
Calpine, Constellation, Duke, Dynegy, TXU, and Williams Companies. For 
example, peer 2000 ROEs were 17.21 percent, 20.21 percent, 10.6 percent, 
13.5 percent, 19.29 percent, 11.3 percent, and 9.14 percent, respectively. Even 
Emon's preadjustment ROE of 7 percent is the lowest for this group. Yet, as 
the report indicates (Wasden et a1. 2001, 2), Emon was trading at a substantial 
valuation premium over its peers. 

A further decomposition of ROE can be done, into return on assets or ROA 
(Net Income/Average Assets) to determine how profitably assets have been 
employed and financial leverage (Average Assets/Average Shareholders' Eq­
uity), which shows how big the firm's asset base is relative to shareholder 
investment. Enron's ROAs are 2000, minus 0.5 percent; 1999,0.06 percent; 
1998, 0.4 percent; 1997, minus 0.4 percent; and 1996, 1.7 percent. An already 
low ROA declined sharply from 1996 to 1997 and has remained at extremely 
low or negative levels. Ratios for the peer group ranged between 2.45 and 
5.37 for the 2000 fiscal year. 

Financial leverage ratios, which show how many dollars of assets the firm 
deploys for each dollar of shareholder investment, were fairly constant, ex­
cept for the increase shown during the 2000 fiscal year: 2000,9.3; 1999,6.2; 
1998, 7.1; 1997,6.1; 1996, 7.2. The main problem appears to be with the 
ROA factor of ROE. 
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AdjustmentAdjustment forfor impactimpactofofstockstockoptionoptionexpenseexpenseasas aadecreasedecreaseinin after-taxafter-tax netnetincomeincome asas 
follows:follows: 2000,2000, $93$93 million;million; 1999,1999, $66$66 million;million; 1998,1998, $29$29 million;million; 1997,1997, $39$39 mil­mil­
lion;lion; andand 1996,1996, $22$22 million.million. 

ConsolidateConsolidate unconsolidatedunconsolidated affiliatesaffiliates asas bestbestwewe cancan withwith thethe incompleteincomplete informationinformation 
availableavailable toto usus (see(see tabletable 5.3).5.3). OurOur consolidatedconsolidated financialfinancial informationinformation isis subjectsubject toto 
thethe followingfollowing limitations:limitations: wewe havehave onlyonly aggregatedaggregated amountsamounts forfor allall affiliates;affiliates; wewe dodo 
notnot havehave individualindividual affiliateaffiliate ownershipownership interestinterest percentages,percentages, acquisitionacquisition dates,dates, 
amounts,amounts, andand preacquisitionpreacquisition equityequity information;information; andand wewe dodo notnot havehave thethe breakdownbreakdown 
ofofrevenuesrevenues andand expensesexpenses thatthat areare notnot operatingoperating revenues/expensesrevenues/expenses andand cannotcannot splitsplit 
thesethese expensesexpenses betweenbetween interest,interest, incomeincome tax,tax, andand otherother expensesexpenses oror revenues.revenues. Be­Be­
causecause ofof thethe aboveabove limitations,limitations, assetsassets maymay bebe understated,understated, becausebecause wewe couldcould notnot 
determinedetermine at-acquisitionat-acquisition goodwill.goodwill. WeWe achieveachieve dualityduality byby adjustingadjusting thethe reportedreported 
amountamount forfor MinorityMinority Interests.Interests. 

FINANCIALFINANCIAL ANALYSISANALYSIS 

OverviewOverview ofof FinancialFinancial AnalysisAnalysis 

TheThe purposepurpose ofof financialfinancial analysisanalysis isis toto assessassess thethe performanceperformance ofof thethe firm.firm. 
WeWe useuse twotwo toolstools forfor thisthis purpose:purpose: ratioratio analysisanalysis andand cashcash flowflow analysis.analysis. InIn 
ratioratio analysis,analysis, wewe determinedetermine howhow selectedselected financialfinancial statementstatement lineline itemsitems relaterelate 
toto eacheach other,other, andand wewe assessassess thethe firm'sfirm's profitability.profitability. InIn cashcash flowflow analysis,analysis, wewe 
analyzeanalyze liquidityliquidity andand evaluateevaluate cashcash flowsflows fromfrom operating,operating, investing,investing, andand fi­fi­
nancingnancing activitiesactivities (Palepu(Palepu etet al. 2000,2000, 9-1).9-1). 

OurOur financialfinancial analysisanalysis isis somewhatsomewhat limitedlimited byby aa lacklack ofof informationinformation onon thethe 
unconsolidatedunconsolidated affiliates.affiliates. ForFor example,example, wewe dodo notnot havehave thethe detailsdetails ofof interestinterest 
expense,expense, incomeincome taxtax expense,expense, andand cashcash flowflow forfor thesethese affiliates.affiliates. Therefore,Therefore, wewe 
couldcould notnot calculatecalculate thethe ratiosratios thatthat requirerequire thisthis informationinformation (e.g.,(e.g., EarningsEarnings be­be­

a1. 

PaIepu a1.forefore IncomeIncome TaxTax margins),margins), andand consequentlyconsequently wewe couldcould notnot useuse thethe Palepu etet al. 
fmancial(2000,(2000, 9-19-1 toto 9-29)9-29) financialfinancial analysisanalysis modelmodel inin itsits entirety.entirety. AlthoughAlthough ourour financial 

analysisanalysis maymay notnot bebe asas comprehensivecomprehensive asas wewe wouldwould likelike itit toto be,be, wewe believebelieve thatthat 
thethe keykey ratiosratios thatthat wewe couldcould calculatecalculate provideprovide usus withwith enoughenough informationinformation toto makemake 
anan informedinformed decisiondecision aboutabout Emon'sEmon's financialfinancial resultsresults andand condition.condition. 

RatioRatio AnalysisAnalysis 

TheThe ratiosratios thatthat wewe useuse forfor ourour personalpersonal decision-makingdecision-making purposespurposes areare sum­sum­
marizedmarized inin tabletable 5.5.5.5. TheseThese calculationscalculations areare basedbased thethe adjustedadjusted amountsamounts thatthat 

Emon'swewe calculated,calculated, notnot onon Enron's reportedreported amounts.amounts. WhereWhere relevant,relevant, wewe useuse thethe 
averageaverage ofof thethe beginningbeginning andand endingending balancesbalances forfor assets,assets, liabilities,liabilities, andand share­share­
holders'holders' equityequity inin ourour ratioratio calculations.calculations. TheThe onlyonly exceptionexception toto thisthis isis forfor 1996,1996, 
becausebecause wewe dodo notnot havehave adjustedadjusted amountsamounts forfor 1995.1995. 

TheThe startingstarting pointpoint forfor analyzinganalyzing aa firm'sfirm's profitabilityprofitability isis returnreturn onon equity.equity. 
ROEROE indicatesindicates howhow wellwell managementmanagement hashas usedused shareholders'shareholders' fundingfunding toto gen­gen­

havetradi­erateerate returns.returns. OnOn average,average, overover longlong periods,periods, largelarge publicpublic U.S.U.S. firmsfirms havetradi­
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Adjustment for impact of stock option expense as a decrease in after-tax net income a
follows: 2000, $93 million; 1999, $66 million; 1998, $29 million; 1997, $39 mil
lion; and 1996, $22 million. 

Consolidate unconsolidated affiliates as best we can with the incomplete informatio
available to us (see table 5.3). Our consolidated financial information is subject t
the following limitations: we have only aggregated amounts for all affiliates; we d
not have individual affiliate ownership interest percentages, acquisition dates
amounts, and preacquisition equity information; and we do not have the breakdow
of revenues and expenses that are not operating revenues/expenses and cannot spli
these expenses between interest, income tax, and other expenses or revenues. Be
cause of the above limitations, assets may be understated, because we could no
determine at-acquisition goodwill. We achieve duality by adjusting the reporte
amount for Minority Interests. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Overview of Financial Analysis 

The purpose of financial analysis is to assess the performance of the firm
We use two tools for this purpose: ratio analysis and cash flow analysis. I
ratio analysis, we determine how selected financial statement line items relat
to each other, and we assess the firm's profitability. In cash flow analysis, w
analyze liquidity and evaluate cash flows from operating, investing, and fi
nancing activities (Palepu et a1. 2000, 9-1). 

, 

Our financial analysis is somewhat limited by a lack of information on th
unconsolidated affiliates. For example, we do not have the details of interes
expense, income tax expense, and cash flow for these affiliates. Therefore, w
could not calculate the ratios that require this information (e.g., Earnings be
fore Income Tax margins), and consequently we could not use the PaIepu et a1
(2000, 9-1 to 9-29) financial analysis model in its entirety. Although our fmancia
analysis may not be as comprehensive as we would like it to be, we believe tha
the key ratios that we could calculate provide us with enough information to mak
an informed decision about Emon's financial results and condition. 

Ratio Analysis 

The ratios that we use for our personal decision-making purposes are sum
marized in table 5.5. These calculations are based the adjusted amounts tha
we calculated, not on Emon's reported amounts. Where relevant, we use th
average of the beginning and ending balances for assets, liabilities, and share
holders' equity in our ratio calculations. The only exception to this is for 1996
because we do not have adjusted amounts for 1995. 

The starting point for analyzing a firm's profitability is return on equity
ROE indicates how well management has used shareholders' funding to gen
erate returns. On average, over long periods, large public U.S. firms havetradi
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TableS.STableS.S
EnronEnron RatioRatio AnalysisAnalysis afterafter AdjustmentsAdjustments toto ReportedReported AmountsAmounts

19961996 19971997 19981998 19991999 20002000 
ReturnReturn onon EquityEquity 12.2%12.2% -3%-3% 3.5%3.5% 0.4%0.4% -4.9%-4.9% 
ReturnReturn onon AssetsAssets -0.5%. 0.5%0.5% 0.1%0.1% -0.6%-0.6%1.7%1.7% -0.5'Y.. 
FinancialFinancial LeverageLeverage 7.27.2 6.56.5 6.66.6 6.66.6 7.97.9 
NetNet ProfitProfit MarginMargin 2%2% -0.4%-0.4% 0.5%0.5% 0.1%0.1% -0.4%-0.4% 
AssetAsset TurnoverTurnover 0.80.8 1.11.1 1.01.0 1.01.0 1.61.6 
GrossGross ProfitProfit MarginMargin 6.5%6.5% 4.1%4.1% 4.9%4.9% 4.1%4.1% 0.8%0.8% 
BasicBasic EPSEPS 0.860.86 -0.28-0.28 0.290.29 -0.05-0.05 -0.73-0.73 
NetNet PP&EPP&E TurnoverTurnover 1.41.4 1.91.9 1.91.9 2.12.1 4.44.4 
CurrentCurrent RatioRatio 1.11.1 1.41.4 0.90.9 0.90.9 1.11.1 
DebtDebt EquityEquity RatioRatio 5.75.7 4.54.5 5.05.0 4.24.2 7.27.2 

Emon'stionallytionally generatedgenerated ROEsROEs ofof 1111 toto 1313 percentpercent (paIepu(paIepu etet aI.aI. 2000,2000, 9-3).9-3). Enron's ROEsROEs
are:are: 2000,2000, minusminus 4.64.6 percent;percent; 1999,0.41999,0.4 percent;percent; 1998,3.21998,3.2 percent;percent; 1997,1997, mi­mi­
nusnus 2.52.5 percent;percent; andand 1996,1996, 12.212.2 percent.percent. TheThe returnreturn forfor 19961996 isis thethe onlyonly oneone
thatthat isis withinwithin thethe normalnormal range.range. TheThe subsequentsubsequent yearsyears (1997(1997 toto 2000)2000) areare wellwell
belowbelow thisthis range,range, withwith 20002000 beingbeing thethe worstworst yearyear byby far.far. ProblemsProblems withwith overalloverall
profitabilityprofitability appearappear toto surfacesurface asas earlyearly asas 1997.1997. AA reviewreview ofof aa ReedReed WasdenWasden

a1.ResearchResearch publicationpublication (Wasden(Wasden etet al. 2001,2-8)2001,2-8) showsshows thatthat Emon'sEmon's ROEsROEs (even(even
thethe preadjustmentpreadjustment ROE)ROE) fallfall farfar shortshort ofof thosethose ofof itsits comparablecomparable peers-AES,peers-AES,
Calpine,Calpine, Constellation,Constellation, Duke,Duke, Dynegy,Dynegy, TXU,TXU, andand WilliamsWilliams Companies.Companies. ForFor
example,example, peerpeer 20002000 ROEsROEs werewere 17.2117.21 percent,percent, 20.2120.21 percent,percent, 10.610.6 percent,percent,
13.513.5 percent,percent, 19.2919.29 percent,percent, 11.311.3 percent,percent, andand 9.149.14 percent,percent, respectively.respectively. EvenEven
Emon'sEmon's preadjustmentpreadjustment ROEROE ofof 77 percentpercent isis thethe lowestlowest forfor thisthis group.group. Yet,Yet, asas

a1.thethe reportreport indicatesindicates (Wasden(Wasden etet al. 2001,2001, 2),2), EmonEmon waswas tradingtrading atat aa substantialsubstantial
valuationvaluation premiumpremium overover itsits peers.peers.

AA furtherfurther decompositiondecomposition ofof ROEROE cancan bebe done,done, intointo returnreturn onon assetsassets oror ROAROA
(Net(Net Income/AverageIncome/Average Assets)Assets) toto determinedetermine howhow profitablyprofitably assetsassets havehave beenbeen
employedemployed andand financialfinancial leverageleverage (Average(Average Assets/AverageAssets/Average Shareholders'Shareholders' Eq­Eq­
uity),uity), whichwhich showsshows howhow bigbig thethe firm'sfirm's assetasset basebase isis relativerelative toto shareholdershareholder
investment.investment. Enron'sEnron's ROAsROAs areare 2000,2000, minusminus 0.50.5 percent;percent; 1999,0.061999,0.06 percent;percent;
1998,1998, 0.40.4 percent;percent; 1997,1997, minusminus 0.40.4 percent;percent; andand 1996,1996, 1.71.7 percent.percent. AnAn alreadyalready
lowlow ROAROA declineddeclined sharplysharply fromfrom 19961996 toto 19971997 andand hashas remainedremained atat extremelyextremely
lowlow oror negativenegative levels.levels. RatiosRatios forfor thethe peerpeer groupgroup rangedranged betweenbetween 2.452.45 andand
5.375.37 forfor thethe 20002000 fiscalfiscal year.year. 

FinancialFinancial leverageleverage ratios,ratios, whichwhich showshow howhow manymany dollarsdollars ofof assetsassets thethe firmfirm
deploysdeploys forfor eacheach dollardollar ofof shareholdershareholder investment,investment, werewere fairlyfairly constant,constant, ex­ex­
ceptcept forfor thethe increaseincrease shownshown duringduring thethe 20002000 fiscalfiscal year:year: 2000,9.3;2000,9.3; 1999,6.2;1999,6.2;
1998,1998, 7.1;7.1; 1997,6.1;1997,6.1; 1996,1996, 7.2.7.2. TheThe mainmain problemproblem appearsappears toto bebe withwith thethe
ROAROA factorfactor ofof ROE.ROE.
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lion) and cash flow from operating activities ($4,779 million) for the 2000 
fiscal year, a difference of $3.8 billion. In contrast, the difference for 1999 
was a mere $335 million. Also, net cash from operating activities increased by 
$3,551, or 289 percent, in 2000. Enron's management explains this enormous 
difference as "primarily reflecting decreases in working capital, positive oper­
ating results and a receipt of cash associated with the assumption of a contrac­
tual obligation" (2000 annual report, 26). Our concern is that cash flow from 
investing activities (e.g., sale of investment assets) may have been diverted to 
cash flow from operating activities. Proceeds from the sale of merchant assets 
and investments are recorded at $1,838 million. We also notice an amount of 
$1,113 million cash inflow, described as "Other operating activities." The com­
parative amount for 1999 was a mere $174 million. Is this the contractual 
obligation of which management briefly makes mention? What is the nature 
of this obligation? Should this obligation possibly be better classified as a 
financing activity? We do not have the answers to these questions, but we do 
not feel comfortable with the cash flow disclosures. We would like to see 
more of an explanation from management, because of the materiality of the 
difference between net income and cash flow from operating activities. If this 
business generated this much in cash from operations, why is the current ratio 
so low and the debt equity ratio so high at the end of 2000? 

CONCLUSION 

Based on the foregoing analyses, we would not recommend this stock. From 
1997 onwards, our analyses indicate reporting and performance problems. We 
have major concerns about profitability and debt levels. 

Enron throws an abundance of information at financial analysts in its Form 
lO-K filings (which are generally in excess of 200 pages). The language is not 
always clear; it can be downright confusing, even to accounting experts-a 
major red flag in and of itself. The quantity of information makes the analyst's 
job time consuming and tedious, effectively drowning the analyst in paper, 
and yet essential information (e.g., separate disclosures of unrealized gains on 
trading activities) is not available. Nonetheless, this does not excuse those 
analysts who overwhelmingly would not see the woods for the trees and who 
continued recommending to clients that they buy or hold Enron stock. 

Our investigation shows that the red flags were plentiful, and the situation 
was aggravated by the apparent disdain Gudging by incidents reported in the 
news media) with which Enron's top management dealt with financial analysts. 
Coupled with the results of our accounting and financial analyses, we should be 
very concerned about the competence, independence, and objectivity of financial 
analysts who continued to recommend this stock. This raises the question of 
whether these analysts were remiss in the discharge of their fiduciary duties. 

We posit that financial analysts may have been buying into the mindset of 
financial management, if one believes that the pre-Enron CFO literature re­
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ROAROA cancan bebe furtherfurther decomposeddecomposed intointo NetNet Income/SalesIncome/Sales multipliedmultiplied byby Sales/Sales/ 
AverageAverage Assets,Assets, thethe netnet profitprofit marginmargin andand assetasset turnoverturnover ratios,ratios, respectivelyrespectively 
(see(see tabletable 5.5).5.5). Enron'sEnron's profitprofit marginsmargins areare dismal,dismal, droppingdropping fromfrom 22 percentpercent inin 
19961996 toto -0.4-0.4 percentpercent inin 19971997 andand 2000.2000. TheThe twotwo positivepositive returnsreturns ofof 0.50.5 percentpercent 
andand 0.10.1 percentpercent inin 19981998 andand 19991999 areare wellwell belowbelow thosethose ofof sixsix ofof Enron'sEnron's sevenseven 
peers.peers. ComparativeComparative peerpeer ratiosratios forfor 20002000 were:were: 9.589.58 percent,percent, 16.3216.32 percent,percent, 8.98.9 
percent,percent, 3.63.6 percent,percent, 1.701.70 percent,percent, 4.784.78 percent,percent, andand 5.195.19 percentpercent (Wasden(Wasden etet 
al.al. 2001,2001, 8).8). TheThe assetasset turnoverturnover ratioratio appearsappears toto bebe reasonable,reasonable, givengiven thethe heavyheavy 
assetasset investmentinvestment requirementsrequirements thatthat areare characteristiccharacteristic ofofenergyenergy companies.companies. OnceOnce 
again,again, profitabilityprofitability appearsappears toto bebe problematic.problematic. GrossGross profitprofit marginsmargins (calcu­(calcu­
latedlated withwith limitedlimited informationinformation asas follow:follow: [Operating[Operating RevenuesRevenues -- OperatingOperating 
CostsCosts andand Expenses]/OperatingExpenses]/Operating Revenues)Revenues) indicateindicate aa problemproblem inin 2000.2000. TheThe 
ratiosratios remainedremained fairlyfairly constantconstant fromfrom 19971997 toto 19991999 butbut thenthen droppeddropped fromfrom 4.14.1 
percentpercent inin 19991999 toto 0.80.8 percentpercent inin 2000,2000, despitedespite anan increaseincrease ofof 129129 percentpercent inin 
thethe amountamount ofof operatingoperating revenuerevenue fromfrom 19991999 toto 2000.2000. InIn summary,summary, wewe areare con­con­
cernedcerned aboutabout Enron'sEnron's operatingoperating management.management. RestatedRestated earningsearnings perper shareshare 
stronglystrongly reinforcereinforce ourour concernsconcerns (1997,(1997, fromfrom 0.160.16 toto negativenegative 0.28;0.28; 1998,1998, fromfrom 
1.071.07 toto 0.29;0.29; 1999,1999, fromfrom 1.171.17 toto negativenegative 0.05;0.05; andand 2000,2000, fromfrom 1.221.22 toto nega­nega­
tivetive 0.73).0.73). HowHow dodo thesethese deterioratingdeteriorating profitprofit ratiosratios justifyjustify thethe increaseincrease inin stockstock 
priceprice ofof nearlynearly 9090 percentpercent inin 2000?2000? 

WithWith regardregard toto long-termlong-term assetasset management,management, thethe onlyonly ratioratio thatthat wewe couldcould 
calculatecalculate waswas thethe property,property, plantplant && equipmentequipment (PP&E)(PP&E) turnoverturnover ratioratio (Sales/(Sales/ 
AverageAverage NetNet PP&E),PP&E), whichwhich showsshows thethe efficiencyefficiency withwith whichwhich PP&EPP&E waswas used.used. 
TheThe onlyonly majormajor fluctuationfluctuation thatthat wewe notednoted waswas thethe increaseincrease inin thisthis ratioratio fromfrom 
2.12.1 inin 19991999 toto 4.44.4 inin 2000,2000, aa resultresult ofof thethe dramaticdramatic increaseincrease inin operatingoperating rev­rev­
enuesenues inin 2000,2000, withoutwithout aa comparablecomparable increaseincrease inin PP&E.PP&E. AsAs previouslypreviously dis­dis­
cussed,cussed, wewe opineopine thatthat thethe 20002000 revenuesrevenues areare ofof questionablequestionable quality.quality. 

Finally,Finally, wewe evaluateevaluate financialfinancial management.management. Enron'Enron' currentcurrent ratioratio (current(current 
assetslcurrentassets/current liabilities)liabilities) appearsappears toto bebe consistentlyconsistently low,low, rangingranging betweenbetween 0.90.9 
andand 1.41.4 forfor 19961996 toto 2000.2000. FromFrom aa debtdebt andand long-termlong-term solvencysolvency perspective,perspective, 
ourour concernsconcerns centercenter roundround thethe vastlyvastly deterioratingdeteriorating debtdebt equityequity ratioratio inin 2000.2000. 
OurOur restatedrestated consolidatedconsolidated amountsamounts indicateindicate anan increaseincrease inin thethe debtdebt equityequity ratioratio 
fromfrom 4.24.2 inin 19991999 toto 7.27.2 inin 2000.2000. Also,Also, reportedreported debt/equitydebt/equity andand restatedrestated debt/debt/ 
equityequity showedshowed aa deteriorationdeterioration ofofcloseclose toto 4040 percent.percent. This,This, alongalong withwith earningsearnings 
managementmanagement concerns,concerns, doesdoes notnot inspireinspire investmentinvestment confidence.confidence. 

However,However, wewe willwill analyzeanalyze Enron'sEnron's cashcash flowflow numbersnumbers beforebefore reachingreaching toto aa 
finalfinal conclusion.conclusion. 

CashCash FlowFlow AnalysisAnalysis 

WeWe dodo notnot havehave thethe requiredrequired unconsolidatedunconsolidated equityequity informationinformation toto adjustadjust 
Enron'sEnron's reportedreported cash-flowcash-flow information.information. Therefore,Therefore, wewe willwill performperform certaincertain 
aspectsaspects ofof cash-flowcash-flow analysisanalysis basedbased onon reportedreported amounts.amounts. WeWe areare particularlyparticularly 
interestedinterested inin thethe largelarge gapgap betweenbetween Enron'sEnron's reportedreported netnet incomeincome ($979($979 mil-mil­
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ROA can be further decomposed into Net Income/Sales multiplied by Sales/
Average Assets, the net profit margin and asset turnover ratios, respectively
(see table 5.5). Enron's profit margins are dismal, dropping from 2 percent in
1996 to -0.4 percent in 1997 and 2000. The two positive returns of 0.5 percent
and 0.1 percent in 1998 and 1999 are well below those of six of Enron's seven
peers. Comparative peer ratios for 2000 were: 9.58 percent, 16.32 percent, 8.9
percent, 3.6 percent, 1.70 percent, 4.78 percent, and 5.19 percent (Wasden et
al. 2001, 8). The asset turnover ratio appears to be reasonable, given the heavy
asset investment requirements that are characteristic ofenergy companies. Once
again, profitability appears to be problematic. Gross profit margins (calcu­
lated with limited information as follow: [Operating Revenues - Operating
Costs and Expenses]/Operating Revenues) indicate a problem in 2000. The
ratios remained fairly constant from 1997 to 1999 but then dropped from 4.1 
percent in 1999 to 0.8 percent in 2000, despite an increase of 129 percent in
the amount of operating revenue from 1999 to 2000. In summary, we are con­
cerned about Enron's operating management. Restated earnings per share
strongly reinforce our concerns (1997, from 0.16 to negative 0.28; 1998, from
1.07 to 0.29; 1999, from 1.17 to negative 0.05; and 2000, from 1.22 to nega­
tive 0.73). How do these deteriorating profit ratios justify the increase in stock
price of nearly 90 percent in 2000? 

With regard to long-term asset management, the only ratio that we could
calculate was the property, plant & equipment (PP&E) turnover ratio (Sales/
Average Net PP&E), which shows the efficiency with which PP&E was used.
The only major fluctuation that we noted was the increase in this ratio from
2.1 in 1999 to 4.4 in 2000, a result of the dramatic increase in operating rev­
enues in 2000, without a comparable increase in PP&E. As previously dis­
cussed, we opine that the 2000 revenues are of questionable quality. 

Finally, we evaluate financial management. Enron' current ratio (current
assetslcurrent liabilities) appears to be consistently low, ranging between 0.9
and 1.4 for 1996 to 2000. From a debt and long-term solvency perspective,
our concerns center round the vastly deteriorating debt equity ratio in 2000. 
Our restated consolidated amounts indicate an increase in the debt equity ratio
from 4.2 in 1999 to 7.2 in 2000. Also, reported debt/equity and restated debt/
equity showed a deterioration of close to 40 percent. This, along with earnings
management concerns, does not inspire investment confidence. 

However, we will analyze Enron's cash flow numbers before reaching to a
final conclusion. 

Cash Flow Analysis 

We do not have the required unconsolidated equity information to adjust
Enron's reported cash-flow information. Therefore, we will perform certain
aspects of cash-flow analysis based on reported amounts. We are particularly
interested in the large gap between Enron's reported net income ($979 mil-
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lion)lion) andandcashcashflowflow fromfrom operatingoperatingactivitiesactivities ($4,779($4,779 million)million)forfor thethe20002000 
afiscalfiscal year,year, adifferencedifferenceofof$3.8$3.8 billion.billion. InIncontrast,contrast, thethedifferencedifferenceforfor 19991999 

awaswas ameremere$335$335million.million.Also,Also,netnetcashcashfromfromoperatingoperatingactivitiesactivitiesincreasedincreasedbyby 
$3,551,$3,551,oror289289percent,percent,inin2000.2000.Enron'sEnron'smanagementmanagementexplainsexplainsthisthisenormousenormous 
differencedifferenceasas"primarily"primarilyreflectingreflectingdecreasesdecreasesininworkingworkingcapital,capital,positivepositiveoper­oper­
atingatingresultsresultsandandaareceiptreceiptofofcashcashassociatedassociatedwithwiththetheassumptionassumptionofofaacontrac­contrac­
tualtualobligation"obligation" (2000(2000annualannualreport,report, 26).26). OurOurconcernconcernisisthatthatcashcashflowflow fromfrom 
investinginvestingactivitiesactivities (e.g.,(e.g., salesaleofofinvestmentinvestmentassets)assets)maymay havehave beenbeendiverteddivertedtoto 
cashcashflowflowfromfromoperatingoperatingactivities.activities. ProceedsProceedsfromfromthethesalesaleofofmerchantmerchantassetsassets 
andandinvestmentsinvestments areare recordedrecorded atat $1,838$1,838 million.million.WeWe alsoalso noticenotice ananamountamountofof 
$1,113$1,113 millionmillioncashcashinflow,inflow,describeddescribedasas "Other"Otheroperatingoperatingactivities."activities."TheThecom­com­
parativeparative amountamount forfor 19991999 waswas aa meremere $174$174 million.million. IsIs thisthis thethe contractualcontractual 
obligationobligation ofof whichwhich managementmanagement brieflybriefly makesmakes mention?mention? WhatWhat isis thethe naturenature 
ofof thisthis obligation?obligation? ShouldShould thisthis obligationobligation possiblypossibly bebe betterbetter classifiedclassified asas aa 
financingfinancing activity?activity? WeWe dodo notnot havehave thethe answersanswers toto thesethese questions,questions, butbut wewe dodo 
notnot feelfeel comfortablecomfortable withwith thethe cashcash flowflow disclosures.disclosures. WeWe wouldwould likelike toto seesee 
moremore ofof anan explanationexplanation fromfrom management,management, becausebecause ofof thethe materialitymateriality ofof thethe 
differencedifference betweenbetween netnet incomeincome andand cashcash flowflow fromfrom operatingoperating activities.activities. IfIf thisthis 
businessbusiness generatedgenerated thisthis muchmuch inin cashcash fromfrom operations,operations, whywhy isis thethe currentcurrent ratioratio 
soso lowlow andand thethe debtdebt equityequity ratioratio soso highhigh atat thethe endend ofof 2000?2000? 

CONCLUSIONCONCLUSION 

BasedBased onon thethe foregoingforegoing analyses,analyses, wewe wouldwould notnot recommendrecommend thisthis stock.stock. FromFrom 
19971997 onwards,onwards, ourour analysesanalyses indicateindicate reportingreporting andand performanceperformance problems.problems. WeWe 
havehave majormajor concernsconcerns aboutabout profitabilityprofitability andand debtdebt levels.levels. 

EnronEnron throwsthrows anan abundanceabundance ofof informationinformation atat financialfinancial analystsanalysts inin itsits FormForm 
lO-KlO-K filingsfilings (which(which areare generallygenerally inin excessexcess ofof 200200 pages).pages). TheThe languagelanguage isis notnot 
alwaysalways clear;clear; itit cancan bebe downrightdownright confusing,confusing, eveneven toto accountingaccounting experts-aexperts-a 
majormajor redred flagflag inin andand ofof itself.itself. TheThe quantityquantity ofof informationinformation makesmakes thethe analyst'sanalyst's 
jobjob timetime consumingconsuming andand tedious,tedious, effectivelyeffectively drowningdrowning thethe analystanalyst inin paper,paper, 
andand yetyet essentialessential informationinformation (e.g.,(e.g., separateseparate disclosuresdisclosures ofof unrealizedunrealized gainsgains onon 
tradingtrading activities)activities) isis notnot available.available. Nonetheless,Nonetheless, thisthis doesdoes notnot excuseexcuse thosethose 
analystsanalysts whowho overwhelminglyoverwhelmingly wouldwould notnot seesee thethe woodswoods forfor thethe treestrees andand whowho 
continuedcontinued recommendingrecommending toto clientsclients thatthat theythey buybuy oror holdhold EnronEnron stock.stock. 

OurOur investigationinvestigation showsshows thatthat thethe redred flagsflags werewere plentiful,plentiful, andand thethe situationsituation 
waswas aggravatedaggravated byby thethe apparentapparent disdaindisdain GudgingGudging byby incidentsincidents reportedreported inin thethe 
newsnews media)media) withwith whichwhich Enron'sEnron's toptop managementmanagement dealtdealt withwith financialfinancial analysts.analysts. 
CoupledCoupled withwith thethe resultsresults ofof ourour accountingaccounting andand financialfinancial analyses,analyses, wewe shouldshould bebe 
veryvery concernedconcerned aboutabout thethe competence,competence, independence,independence, andand objectivityobjectivity ofof financialfinancial 
analystsanalysts whowho continuedcontinued toto recommendrecommend thisthis stock.stock. ThisThis raisesraises thethe questionquestion ofof 
whetherwhether thesethese analystsanalysts werewere remissremiss inin thethe dischargedischarge ofof theirtheir fiduciaryfiduciary duties.duties. 

WeWe positposit thatthat financialfinancial analystsanalysts maymay havehave beenbeen buyingbuying intointo thethe mindsetmindset ofof 
re­financialfinancial management,management, ifif oneone believesbelieves thatthat thethe pre-Enronpre-Enron CFOCFO literatureliterature re­
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flectsflects whatwhat waswas happeninghappening withinwithin financialfinancial managementmanagement circles.circles. WhenWhen re­re­
viewingviewing thisthis literature,literature, bearbear inin mindmind thatthat thethe purposepurpose ofof financialfinancial reportingreporting isis 
toto reflectreflect underlyingunderlying businessbusiness realityreality soso thatthat externalexternal usersusers cancan makemake informedinformed 
economiceconomic decisions.decisions. WeWe concludeconclude thisthis chapterchapter withwith examplesexamples fromfrom thisthis litera­litera­
ture,ture, whichwhich waswas freelyfreely availableavailable toto financialfinancial analysts.analysts. 

RonaldRonald Fink,Fink, aa seniorsenior editoreditor ofof CFOCFO Magazine,Magazine, wrotewrote aboutabout Enron'sEnron's sub­sub­
stantialstantial needneed forfor capitalcapital inin JuneJune 1999:1999: "But"But conventionalconventional financingfinancing techniquestechniques 
toto exploitexploit thethe industry'sindustry's currentcurrent andand potentialpotential sizesize wouldwould jeopardizejeopardize thethe BBB+BBB+ 
creditcredit ratingrating EnronEnron earnsearns........ TheThe financialfinancial balancingbalancing actact thatthat thisthis situationsituation 
requiresrequires hashas turnedturned EnronEnron intointo aa mastermaster ofof creativecreative financingfinancing........ EnronEnron doesdoes 

highlynotnot consolidateconsolidate aa numbernumber ofof highly leveragedleveraged subsidiariessubsidiaries inin whichwhich itit owns­owns­
oror plansplans toto own-noown-no moremore thanthan 5050 percentpercent ofof thethe votingvoting stock.stock. UnderUnder currentcurrent 
practice,practice, EnronEnron cancan useuse thethe equityequity methodmethod ofof treatingtreating thesethese subsidiaries'subsidiaries' re­re­
sults,sults, whichwhich keepskeeps theirtheir debtdebt andand assetsassets offoff Enron'sEnron's ownown books."books." TheThe articlearticle 
goesgoes onon toto describedescribe thethe "creative"creative financing"financing" thatthat FastowFastow usedused toto keepkeep somesome 
$10$10 billionbillion inin long-termlong-term debtdebt andand otherother liabilitiesliabilities offoff Enron'sEnron's balancebalance sheet.sheet. 
TheThe writerwriter concludes:concludes: "No"No wonderwonder FastowFastow goesgoes toto greatgreat lengthslengths toto convinceconvince 
financialfinancial analystsanalysts thatthat suchsuch nonrecoursenonrecourse debtdebt shouldn'tshouldn't bebe consolidated,consolidated, re­re­
gardlessgardless ofof FASB'sFASB's position."position." AA secondsecond articlearticle appearsappears inin thethe samesame publica­publica­
tiontion inin OctoberOctober 19991999 (Banham(Banham 1999),1999), singingsinging Fastow'sFastow's praisespraises forfor "walking"walking 
thethe tightrope"tightrope" ofof creativecreative financing:financing: "Fastow's"Fastow's expertexpert balancingbalancing act,act, inin fact,fact, 
hashas earnedearned himhim thisthis year'syear's CFOCFO ExcellenceExcellence AwardAward forfor CapitalCapital StructureStructure Man­Man­
agement."agement." TheThe veryvery actsacts thatthat resultedresulted inin thisthis ExcellenceExcellence AwardAward areare contrarycontrary toto 
thethe purposepurpose ofof financialfinancial accounting,accounting, whichwhich isis toto helphelp externalexternal decisiondecision makersmakers 
makemake informedinformed decisionsdecisions aboutabout thethe economiceconomic activitiesactivities ofof thethe firm.firm. II 

NOTENOTE 

1.1. Enron'sEnron's employeeemployee evaluation/incentiveevaluation/incentive systemsystem thatthat providedprovided highhigh rewardsrewards forfor 
goodgood short-termshort-term performanceperformance reportsreports andand terminationtermination forfor thethe bottombottom 1515 percentpercent "per­"per­

manipUlationformers"formers" certainlycertainly createdcreated aa fertilefertile environmentenvironment forfor accountingaccounting manipulation andand dis­dis­
tortedtorted reportsreports (Cruver(Cruver 2002).2002). ThisThis factfact mustmust bebe takentaken intointo considerationconsideration forfor anyany firmfirm 
havinghaving oror consideringconsidering suchsuch aa system.system. 
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flects what was happening within financial management circles. When re­
viewing this literature, bear in mind that the purpose of financial reporting is 
to reflect underlying business reality so that external users can make informed
economic decisions. We conclude this chapter with examples from this litera­
ture, which was freely available to financial analysts. 

Ronald Fink, a senior editor of CFO Magazine, wrote about Enron's sub­
stantial need for capital in June 1999: "But conventional financing techniques 
to exploit the industry's current and potential size would jeopardize the BBB+ 
credit rating Enron earns.... The financial balancing act that this situation 
requires has turned Enron into a master of creative financing.... Enron does 
not consolidate a number of highly leveraged subsidiaries in which it owns­
or plans to own-no more than 50 percent of the voting stock. Under current 
practice, Enron can use the equity method of treating these subsidiaries' re­
sults, which keeps their debt and assets off Enron's own books." The article 
goes on to describe the "creative financing" that Fastow used to keep some 
$10 billion in long-term debt and other liabilities off Enron's balance sheet. 
The writer concludes: "No wonder Fastow goes to great lengths to convince 
financial analysts that such nonrecourse debt shouldn't be consolidated, re­
gardless of FASB's position." A second article appears in the same publica­
tion in October 1999 (Banham 1999), singing Fastow's praises for "walking 
the tightrope" of creative financing: "Fastow's expert balancing act, in fact, 
has earned him this year's CFO Excellence Award for Capital Structure Man­
agement." The very acts that resulted in this Excellence Award are contrary to 
the purpose of financial accounting, which is to help external decision makers 
make informed decisions about the economic activities of the firm. I 

NOTE 

1. Enron's employee evaluation/incentive system that provided high rewards for 
good short-term performance reports and termination for the bottom 15 percent "per­
formers" certainly created a fertile environment for accounting manipUlation and dis­
torted reports (Cruver 2002). This fact must be taken into consideration for any firm 
having or considering such a system. 
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